SOUTH PASADENA FINANCE COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 25, 2019, 6:30 pm
South Pasadena City Hall
City Manager’s Conference Room
1414 Mission St.

South Pasadena, CA 91030

1. ROLL CALL
Commission Chair Wood, Vice Chair Adrian, Commissioners Choi, Findley, and Tao,

City Treasurer Pia, Staff Liaison/Finance Director Koehler, and City Council Liaison
Mahmud.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Time reserved for public input from those who wish to address the Commission. Public
input will also be taken on all agenda items. Public input is limited to 5 minutes per
speaker.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Review minutes of Special Meeting of November 15, 2018; Special Meeting of February
11, 2019; and Special Meeting of March 28, 2019.

4. NEW BUSINESS
A. Presentation of Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, 2018
B. Informational Item on Sales Tax
C. Discussion of City’s Election of 100% Renewable Energy Mix Through Clean
Power Alliance (CPA)
5. CONTINUING BUSINESS
6. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
7. COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS
8. STAFF LIAISON COMMENTS

9. NEXT MEETING - Special Mecting May 23,

‘f}f?[lﬁ ﬁ%ﬁ _—

=

Date Signature

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am an employee of the City of South Pasadena and that |
posted this Agenda on the bulletin board in the courtyard of the City Hall at 1414 Mission Street,
South Pasadena, CA 91030. as required by law.



City of South Pasadena Finance Commission
Minutes for Special Meeting of:
November 15, 201819 6:30 p.m.

Location: Burke Triolo Studio 538 Mission Street
South Pasadena, CA 91030

I Roll Call Commission Chair Catania - Present
Commission Vice-Chair Adrian — Absent
Commissioner Burke — Present
Commissioner Corey - Present
Commissioner Wood — Present
City Council Liaison Schneider - Present
City Treasurer Pia - Present
Staff Liaison/Finance Director Koehler - Present

Il Public Comment
None,

1IN Approval of Minutes
None

v, New Business
A. Reorganization of the Finance Department and agreements with HdL for Business
License Services and ADP for Payroll Administration Services.

Staff presented a brief report on the reorganization, expected efficiencies, and cost
savings associated with the Finance Department restructuring. The commissioners

requested the Chair draft a memo to Council outlining their dissatisfaction that the
reorganization was not presented to them prior to the action by the City Council.

V. Continuing Business
None.

Vi, Commissioner Comments
None.

VII. Council Liaison Comments
None.

VIIL. Staff Liaison Comments
None,

IX. Next Meeting — December 27, 2019, cancelled



City of South Pasadena Finance Commission
Minutes for Special Meeting of:
February 11, 2019 6:30 p.m.

Location:

VI

Vil

VIiL

City Hall — City Manager's Conference Room
1414 Mission Street
South Pasadena, CA 91030

Roll Call Commission Chair vacant

Commission Vice-Chair Adrian — Present
Commissioner Choi — Present

Commissioner Findley - Present

Commissioner Tao- Present

Commissioner Wood — Present

City Council Liaison Mahmud - Present

City Treasurer Pia — Present

Staff Liaison/Finance Director Koehler — Present

Public Comment
None.

Approval of Minutes
Minutes of August 23, Approved 5-0; and Minutes of October 25, 2018 Approved 5-0.

New Business

d.

Election of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson

Commissioner Wood was elected as Chairperson, and Vice-Chairperson was re-elected
as Vice-Chairperson for the calendar year 2019.

Budget Qutreach Plan FY19-20

Public Information Officer Pope provided an outline of the proposed Budget Qutreach
Plan for FY19-20.

Review Commission duties and responsibilities

Finance Director Koehler provided an outline of the Commission’s duties and
responsibilities.

Review Work Plan for 2019

Finance Director Koehler provided the Work Plan for 2019.

Continuing Business

None.

Commissioner Comments

None.

Council Liaison Comments

None.

Staff Liaison Comments

None.

Next meeting — Special Meeting March 28, 2019



City of South Pasadena Finance Commission
Minutes for Special Meeting of:
March 28, 2019 7:30 p.m.

Location:  City Hall - City Manager's Conference Room
1414 Mission Street
South Pasadena, CA 91030

I Roll Call Commission Chair Wood- Present
Commission Vice-Chair Adrian — Present
Commissioner Choi - Present
Commissioner Findley - Present
Commissioner Tao— Present
City Council Liaison Mahmud - Absent
City Treasurer Pia — Present
Staff Liaison/Finance Director Koehler — Present

1. Public Comment
None.

1l Approval of Minutes
Minutes of August 23, Approved 5-0; and Minutes of October 25, 2018 Approved 5-0.

v, New Business

a. Review Mid-Year Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2018-19
Finance Director Koehler provided a review of the Mid-Year Financial Report for Fiscal
Year 2018-19.

b. Review of Five-Year Financial Forecast
City Manager DeWolfe and Finance Director Koehler gave a presentation on the Five-
Year Forecast. Commissioners were asked to take a survey on the City budget and
provide input on potential solutions to close the deficit and ensure financial
sustainability.

V. Continuing Business
None.
V. Commissioner Comments

Motion by Commissioner Tao and second by Commissioner Choi, to bring back a discussion
at the next meeting on the City’s election of 100% renewable energy mix through the Clean
Power Alliance.

VI, Council Liaison Comments
None.

VIl Staff Liaison Comments
None.

IX. Next meeting — April 25, 2019






Finance Commission TN
Agenda Report T
DATE: April 25, 2019
FROM: Craig Koehler, Finance Director
SUBJECT: Presentation of Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Finance Commission review, and receive and file the Draft Annual
Financial Report (CAFR} for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

Discussion/Analysis
The draft CAFR was presented to Council on April 17, 2019.

Background

The attached staff report, additional memo to Council April 17, 2019, and draft CAFR for fiscal
year ending June 30, 2018, are included in the agenda packet for your reference. A representative
of Rogers, Anderson, Malody, & Scott, LLP, will be present to present the audit and report.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact.

Public Notification of Agenda Item

The public was made aware that this item was to be considered this evening by virtue of its
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the
City’s website and/or notice in the South Pasadena Review and/or the Pasadena Star-News.

Attachments:
1. Staff Report to Council — Presentation of Draft CAFR for Fisca! Year Ending June
30, 2018
2. Additional memo to Council April 17, 2019
3. Draft CAFR June 30, 2018



City of South Pasadena
Finance Department

Date: April 17, 219
To: The Honorable City Council
N

Via Stephanic DeWolfe., City Manager .

From:  Craig Kochler, Finance Director

April 17. 2019 City Council Meeting liem No. 30 Staff Report

Listed below arc clanifications and comections to the presentation ol the Drift Comprehensive
Financial Annual Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018,

To darify the funds identified within the CAFR, when making a reference to the
Governmental Activities it is referring to the General Fund, and when making a reference
to the Business-Type Activates, it is in referring to the Enterprise Fund.

It is Council’s policy to retain 25% of the General Fund as emergency reserves, and in
connection with the Water Fuad (Enterprise Fund) 30% (approximately $2.1M) is reserved

per bond covenants. The total General Fund emergency reserves are approximately 37% of

the General Fund expenditures ($11.2M).
Page 30-1, Executive Summary is revised 1o state as clarified below:

“The CAFR is a complete set of financial statements that summarizes the city’s financial position
for the Fiscal Year. The report is prepared annually by city stafT and audited by an independent
auditing firm. The purpose of the audit is to provide a reasonable assurance from an independent
source that the information is reliable. The audit for FY 18 was recently completed by Rogers,
Anderson. Melody & Scott. LLP. who readered an unmodified opinion, the optimal opinion

| issued by independent auditors. The City's net position increased by $4.277.162 (Business Type

AGENDA ITEM #
U A M Gcity Councit Mrg.




| Activitics only, befor: restutement) over the prior year: this was due primarily to the increased
vatue of the City's capital assets such as land, infrastructure and buildings. minus the incneases in
the City's net pension liability, and loans payable.”

Page 30-2, Sccond Bullet point is revised (o state;

s At the closc of the curnent Fiseal Year. the City's govemnmental funds reported combined
fund balances of $24.149.604 a decrease of ($494,660). OF the amount, $10,308.576, or
approximately 43% of total fund balances (Genernl Fund and Non major Governmental
Funds) are available for spending at the City's discretion (emergency reserve fund
balance). This fund halance is reserved for emergencies designated for capital and

| noncapital projects {py. 30-32).

Page 30-2, Third Bullet point is revised to stale:

Al the end of the fiscal year, the emergency reserve fund halance (unrestricted} for Owe - - | Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 05"

General Fund was $11,182,760, or 37% 448 of the General Fund Expenditures_(pu. 30-

32),

e Page 30-2, Jast paragraph is revised and comected 1o state:

The table above presents a summarized version of the City's Statement of Net Position
for FY 2017-18. and a comparison Lo the previous fscal year. Net position may serve as
a usclu! indicator of a govemment's Anancial position. In te case of the City. assets
cxceeded liabilities by $77.650.459 at the close of the fiscal year. This represents an

increase of $4.953.247 $4836:242 or 7% from the prior year {prior 1o westatement as [ rormatted: font: Not Bold, No underline )
shown in Table 30-3), - _ { Formatted: Font: Nt Bald, No underline |

® Page 2



City Council 30
Agenda Report ITEM RO, 25
DATE: April 17, 2018
FROM: Stephanie DeWolfe, City Manager \ J,
PREPARED BY:  Craig Koehler, Finance Director .
SUBJECT: Presentation of the Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

Recommendation Action

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Draft City of South Pasadena’s
(City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year (FY) ending June
30, 2018.

Executive Summary

The CAFR is a complete set of financial statements that summarizes the city’s financial position
for the Fiscal Year. The report is prepaced annually by city staff and audited by an independent
anditing firm. The purpose of the audit is to provide a reasonable assurance from an independent
source that the information is reliable. The audit for FY 18 was recently completed by Rogers,
Anderson, Melody & Scott, LLP, who rendered an unmodified opinion, the optimal opinion
issued by independent auditors. The City’s net position increased by $4,277,162 over the prior
year; this was due primarily to the increased value of the City’s capital assets such as land,
infrastructure and buildings, minus the increases in the City’s net pension liability, and loans
payable.

Commission Review and Recommendation
This will be reviewed by the Finance Commission at a regular meeting scheduled for April 25,
2019.

Discussion/Analysis

For FY2017-18, the accounting firms of Rogers, Anderson, Malody, & Scott, LLP, performed an
independent audit to determine that the financial statements are fairly presented and free from
material misstatement. The independent auditor concluded there was reasonable basis for
rendering an unmodified opinion, and that City’s financial statements are fairly presented in
conformity with (GAAP).

Listed below are financial highlights for FY 2017-18:

30-1



Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018
April 17,2019
Page 2 of 4

e The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$77.650, 459.

o At the close of the current Fiscal Year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
fund balances of $24,149,604 a decrease of ($494,660). Of the amount, $10,308,576 or
approximately 43%of the total fund balances are available for spending at the City’s
discretion (emergency reserve fund balance). This fund balance is reserved for
emergencies designated for capital and noncapital projects.

» At the end of the fiscal year, the emergency reserve fund balance (uarestricted) for the
General Fund was $11,182,760, or 44% of the General Fund expenditures.

¢ The City’s total net investrent in capital assets increased by $6,255,524 over the prior
fiscal year.

There are two primary citywide finaqcial statements: Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. Similar to a balance sheet in private sector accounting, the Statement of
Net Position presents the City’s overall financial position at a specific point in time — in the
City's case, this is as of the last day of the fiscal year (June 30, 2018).

The Statement of Activities is similar to the income statement, presenting the City’s results of
operations over a period of time.

City of South Pasadena Net Position
As of June 20, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 i 2017 [ 2018 " 2017 2018 ” 2017

Current and ather assets § 27,717,338 $ 27,260,514 || § 14,274,295 § 14,784,133 | $ 41,991,634 $ 42,044,647
Capilal assets 62,808,755 59,774,372 74,217,620 70,811,859 137,024,375 130,586,231

Tolal assels 90.524,094 87,034,886 | 88,491,915 85,585,992 179.016.009 172,630,878
Deferred outflow of resourcas 9,923,516 7,031,413 6,640,100 8,712,800 16,563,616 13.744.213
Long-lerm liabilities 48,591,497 37,867,757 58,327,986 57,391,243 106,919,483 95,259,000
Orther llabllities 3,273,859 2,174,739 3,668,754 5,217,584 6,942,613 7,392,323

Total kabiiities 51,865,356 40,042,496 61,996,740 62,608,827 113,862,096 102,651,323
Delerred inflow of resowsces 3,649,673 3,051,477 417,397 220.528 4,067,070 3,272,005
Net investment in capital assels 62,806,755 59,774,372 25,526,014 22,302,873 88,332,769 82,077,245
Restricted 6,336,084 6,328,022 1,154,374 2,998,161 7,490,458 6,326,183
Unrestricted (24.210,258) {15,130,06B) 6,037,490 4,178,403 {18,172,768) (10,951,665)

Total net pasition $ 440932581 § 50972326 || § 32,717,878 $ 29479437 || 8 77.650459 S B0,451,763

The table above presents a summarized version of the City’s Statement of Net Position for FY
2017-18, and a comparison to the previous fiscal year. Net position may serve as a useful
indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities
by $77,650,459 at the close of the fiscal year, This represents an increase of $4,956,247, or 7%
from the prior year.
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Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

April 17,2019
Page 3 of 4

Net investment in capital assets of $88,332,769 are by far the largest portion of the City’s net
position, and reflects its investment in non-liquid capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure,
buildings, and equipment). The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The second portion of the City
net position, $7,490,458, represents special revenue resources that are subject to external

restrictions on how thcy may be used.

City of South Pasadena Net Posltion
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmenial Activities Business-Type Actlvitles Total
2018 2017 2018 C_ 2017 2018 T 27

Program revenues;

Charges for services $ 4771481 5 5180333 || ¢ 12,611,418 $ 11490222 (| $ 17,982,584 S 18,670,555

Operating conlributions and grants| a72,028 1,471,113 200,167 - 1,172,193 1,471,113

Capital contributions and grants 1,325,968 2,418,236 - - 1,325,968 2,418,236
General revenues:

Properly taxes 14,135,844 13,236,932 - - 14,135,844 13,236,932

Olher taxes 8,929,003 8,915,921 - . 8,929,003 8,915,921

Intergovernmantal - 11,660 - - . 11,660

Usc of money and property 650,749 553,165 92,551 (2,802) 743,300 550,383

Other 130,310 38,877 216,693 171,452 347,003 210,329

Total revenuas 30,915,381 31,826,237 13,120,524 11,658,872 44,035,905 43,485,109

Expenses.

General govamment §,560,722 4,324,484 - - 5,560,722 4,324,484

Public safety 14,624,313 15,596,078 - - 14,624,313 15,596,078

Public works 1,037,091 5,529,025 - - 1,037,031 5,529,025

Communily services 3,619,654 3,568,285 - - 3,819,654 3,566,285

Community developrment 5,197,516 1,289,447 - - 5,197,516 1,289,447
Watar - - 7,060,363 7,028,827 7,060,363 7,028,827
Sewer - - 688,672 1,012,338 686,672 1,012,338
Goll course - - 1,096,327 1,032,358 1,096,327 1,032,358

Tolal expenses 80,239,296 30,305,319 | 8,843,362 9,073,523 39,082,658 39,378,842

Income belfore trans(ars 676,085 1,520,918 4,277,162 2,585,349 4,953,247 4,106,267
Translers - 24514 - {24,514) - -
Increasa in net position 676,085 1,545,432 4,277,162 2,560,835 4,053,247 4,106,267
Net posHtion, beginning, as restated 44,256,496 49,426,894 28.440,716 26,918,602 72697212 76,345,496
Net position. ending June 30,2018 | $ 44932581 $ 50972326} S 32717878 $ 29479437 [|§ 77.650.459 S 80,451,763

Governmental activities net position increased by $676,085, after the prior period restatement,
due to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, GASB No.
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, and GASB
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.

Business activities net position increased by $3,238,441 over the prior year due primarily to
construction-in-progress on the Garfield Reservoir Reconstruction Project.

Background

After the close of each fiscal year, the Finance Department is responsible for the preparation and
publication of the City’s CAFR following an independent, certified audit. The goal of the
financial audit and report is to provide users with a reasonable assurance that the information

presented in the statements is accurate and timely.
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Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018
April 17,2019
Page 4 of 4

The CAFR presents information on the status of the City’s financial affairs, first on a citywide
basis (Government-Wide Financial Statements) in which all the City activities are reported as
governmental activities and business-type activities. A second set of statements (Fund Financial
Statements) report separately the activities of all City Funds.

The CAFR is organized into three primary sections:

1. Introductory Section — includes the Finance Director’s Letter of Transmittal, List of
Principal Officials, and the Organization Chart.

2. Financial Section - includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, and the general purpose financial statements, consisting of the
combined financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and supplemental
statements.

3. Statistical Section — includes comparative information on pertinent City data, such as
expenditores, revenues, assessed valuations, tax levies, demographic data, and
performance measurements.

The CAFR is important for a number of reasons:

e The CAFR is utilized by the investment community, including bond buyers, underwriters,
bond issuers, and credit rating agencies.

» [t serves as a public information tool in the form of a comprehensive presentation of all of
the City's financial activities.

¢ Due to a standardized format, the CAFR serves as a tool to provide a meaningful
comparison to similar data for other cities.

Legal Review
The City Attorney has not reviewed this item.

Fiscal Impact '
There is no cost associated with the presentation of this report.

Public Notification of Agenda Item

The public was made aware that this item was to be considered this evening by virtue of its
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the
City’s website and/or notice in the South Pasadena Review and/or the Pasadena Star-News.

Attachment: Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2018
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Jraft
Subject to Change

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CALIFORNIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PREPARED BY: FINANCE DEPARTMENT
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Subject to Change

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30, 2018
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April 17, 2019

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council,

We proudly present to you the City of South Pasadena’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City
of South Pasadena. It was prepared by the Finance Department in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as promulgated by the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. We believe that the data presented is
complete and reliable in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set
forth the financial activity of the City’s various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain a good understanding of the City’s financial activity have been included.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, a
liccnsed certified public accounting firm. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of South
Pasadena’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors in the financial section of the CAFR.
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Profile of the City of South Pasadena

South Pasadena is located approximately six miles northeast of downtown Los Angeles, on the
west side of the San Gabriel Valley between the cities of Pasadena, San Marino, Los Angeles and
Alhambra and has a population of 25,992, Founded in 1874 by the Indiana Colony, the City
encompasses 3.44 square miles and was incorporated as a General Law city of the State of
California on March 2, 1888. South Pasadena is noted for its beautiful, historically significant
homes on tree-lined streets, for its excellent public schools and for a small-town atmosphere in the
midst of greater Los Angeles.

The City is a full-service general law city that operates under the Council-Manager form of
government. The City Council consists of five members elected to four-year staggered terms of
office. The Mayor is selected from the City Council members and serves a one-year term. The
City’s other elected officials are the City Treasurer and City Clerk, each of whom serves a four-
year term of office.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the construction
and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure; sewer services; water utility; refuse collection;
public improvements; planning and zoning; recreational activities and cultural events; library
operations; and general administrative and support services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control. The City
Council holds public hearings and adopts an annual budget resolution by July 1 of each fiscal year
for all funds and account groups. The City Council may modify appropriations with majority
approval. The budgets are adopted and presented on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Changes in budget appropriations at the fund level during the year must be approved by the City
Council. The legal level of expenditures is controlled at the fund level, and appropriations lapse at
the end of each fiscal year unless encumbered for re-appropriation by the City Council in the
following fiscal year. Department heads may, without Council approval, amend individual line
items within their dcpartments, within the same fund and only within the maintenance and
operations portions of the budget, without incrcasing total appropriations. The City Manager may,
without Council approval, amend individual line items within any fund, and between divisions and
programs, in the personnel costs, maintenance and operations, capital outlay and capital projects
portions of the budget without increasing total appropriations for that fund.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is

considered from the broader perspective of the environment within which the City of South
Pasadena operates.
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Local Economy. For FY 2017/18, the City of South Pasadena, the greater Los Angeles region and
the State of California, have shown increasing revenues over the last several years as the region
has recovered from the 2008 recession.

Property taxes are the City’s largest tax source and make up approximately half of the General
Fund revenues. The City of South Pasadena experienced a net taxable value increase of 6.0% for
the 2017/18 tax roll, while Los Angeles County experienced an increase in assessed values of 7.0%
over the prior year due to a strong rebound in residential real estate values. In the City of South
Pasadena, assessed values increased by $274 million over FY 2016/17. Property taxes have
demonstrated consistent strong increases in growth in assessed values and in corresponding tax
collections, partially because the City’s extremely high quality of life makes it a desirable place to
live and work. Moreover, the City’s proximity to commercial and cultural developments in greater
Pasadena offers our residents distinct lifestyle advantages. South Pasadena’s assessed values and
property taxes are expected to continue performing strongly as the general economy improves.
Data also show that South Pasadena retains $0.24 for every dollar of property tax collected within
the City, while new cities receive only $0.05 for every dollar of property tax collected within their
city boundaries.

The Utility Users Tax (UUT) is the second largest revenue source for the General Fund, at $3.4
million. At the November 2018 local elections, the South Pasadena community voted to extend
the UUT for four years, while retaining the amount at the current 7.5%.

Overall, South Pasadena continues to remain in satisfactory financial condition thanks to a
relatively diverse and stable revenue base. Qur core services have remained consistent despite
certain revenue losses to the State as a result of the dissolution of redevelopment agencies.
However, with the shifting of the former property tax increment back to affected taxing agencies,
the City has been recovering some of this lost revenue,

Long-Term Financial Planning for Infrastructure. In 2009, the City established a long-range
vision for its sewer and water enterprises by issuing bonds and adjusting charges for service to
finance many critically needed improvements. Since then, the water and sewer rates needed for
the restoration and rehabilitation of the aging water and sewer infrastructure have increased by
over 100%. Since 2009, the City has spent approximately $37.0 million upgrading the water
system, and $7.08 million upgrading the sewer system, The City expects to spend an additional
$10 million over the next two years on these projects. For the last five fiscal years, the City Council
has also voted to commit at least $2 million annually towards the rehabilitation of city streets.

Internal Controls. The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining
an internal control structure to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or
misuse, and to ensure that adequate account data is compiled for the preparation of financial
statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control structure should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require
estimates and sound judgments by management.

iii
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Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of South Pasadena
for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of
state and local govemment financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an casily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. This
report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of South Pasadena
has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last 30 consecutive years (fiscal years ended
1987 through 2017). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements, and will again submit it to GFOA for award consideration.

The preparation and publication of this report is made possible through the dedication of the entire
Finance Department staff, and especially from Armine Trashian, Accounting Manager, This report
would also not have been possible without the leadership of the City Manager, Stephanie DeWolfe,
and continued commitment from the City Council in conducting the financial operations and
corresponding financial disclosures of the City in an open, public and transparent manner. Finally,
thanks are extended to the firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, for their contributions
towards improving our financial reporting.

Respectfully submitted,

Craig Roeklen

Craig Koehler
Finance Director

iv

30-12



Jraft

Subject to Change

{1iopasq) 0oND womod) [CIeE o) Lopeng wsu} =Pana) {10020 Wty Topoaia)
snson b TR0 SO PN N vrulleg pen potemal) oagg spelo urg Pingd Bous
FONVNIZ 3910d mh.m ONITANG ¥ DHINNV I AHvHaN SHHOM DNENd SIDIAUIS ALINMIWWOD
| { | | ]
1
L - I v Toustry -5 Gha3
HIUNSYIUL ALD WHI1D AUD
031931 {310313)
.

|_SH3INDISSINNOD |
| ONvSOuvOR |

paunep euerd
RIOPSED ¥ PRI
w3 A chep *0or °S Yoqoy
sodupy Oy vEpsaamEy BVlEN
TIRNOI ALID

802 L102
LUVYHI TYNOLLVZINYDHO

VYN3AVYSVd HLNOS 40 ALID

0-13



Draft

Subject to Change
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, CALIFORNIA
OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
CITY COUNCIL
Marina Khubesrian, M.D.
Mayor
Robert 8. Joe
Mayor Pro Tempora
Michaei A. Caccioti
Mayor
Diana Mahmud
Councilmember
Richard D. Schneider, M.D.
Mayor Pro Tempore
ADMINISTRATION AND DEPARTMENT HEADS
City Manager Stephanie DeWolfe
City Clerk Evelyn G. Znelmer
City Treasurer Gary E, Pia
City Attorney Teresa L. Highsmith
Director of Finance Craig Koehler
Director of Library, Arts, and Culture Steve Fjeldsted
Police Chief Joe Ortiz
Director of Community Services Sheila Pautsch
Fire Chief Paul Riddle
Interim Direclor of Public Works Dan Ojeda
Interim Director of Planning and Building David Bergman

vi

20-14



Draft
Subject to Change

®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of South Pasadena
California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2017

WP-W

Executive Director/CEQ

vii

30-15



Draft
Subject to Change

FINANCIAL SECTION

30-16



Draft
Subject to Change

The Honorable City Council
of the Clty of South Pasadena
South Pasadena, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activiies, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of South Pasadena,
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relavant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepled in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. [n making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinlon. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of South Pasadena,
California, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounling Principle

As described in Note 1, the City adopted provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits other than Pension, Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
required supplementary information as noted in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financia! statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or pravide any assurance.
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Other Infarmation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of South Pasadena's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and the
stalistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financlal statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual honmajor fund financial
statements and the nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respscts, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
xx, 2019 on our consideration of the City of South Pasadena's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is fo describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of South Pasadena's internal control over
financlal reporting and compliance.

!(’0 CAS, t‘l‘méu.r.ou-, Mnxoa?‘ 2 ,fco#, LLF.

San Bernardino, California
April XX, 2019

30-19



Draft
Subject to Change

This page intentionally laft blank.

30-20



Draft

Subject to Chan
cITY

e
OF%OUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As management of the City of South Pasadena, we offer readers of the City of South
Pasadena's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have fumished in our letter of
transmittal and the City's financial statements.

{A) Financlal Highlights

* The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$77,650,459. Unrestricted net position in an amount of ($18,172,768) is primarily due to
the City recording the net pension liabllity and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, and information about the fiduciary net
position of the City's CalPERS plans per GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 and 75.

» The City’s total net position increased by $4,277,162.

« At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
fund balances of $24,149,604 a decrease of $494,660. Of this amount, $10,308,576 or
approximately 43% of total fund balances are available for spending at the City's
discretion (unassigned fund balance).

s At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund
was $11,182,760, or 44% of the total General Fund Expenditures.

» The City's net investment in capital assets increased $6,255,524 from the prior fiscal
year.

{B) Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three componenis: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements, This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred
outflows/inflows of resources, and liabilities, with the difference between these items reported as
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the City of South Pasadena is improving or deteriorating.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reparted as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, with the use of the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and expenses are
reporied in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.9. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-fype aclivities). The govermnmental aclivities of the City include
general government, public safety, public works, planning, building and safety, recreation, and
debt service. The business-type acflivities of the City are ils water, sewer, and golf course
enterprises.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintaln
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City
of South Pasadena, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All of the funds of the City can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmenial funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental aclivities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the govemment-wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
Information presented for govermnmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance sheet and govemmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of South Pasadena maintains 30 individual govemmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund,
which is considered to be a major fund for the purposes of this report. Data from the other 29
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this reporl.
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CITY OF'SOUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The City of South Pasadena adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and
each of its special revenue funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
each govemnmental fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The budgetary
comparison statement for the General Fund is located in the basic financial statements; the
budgetary comparison statements for the non-major governmental funds are presented in the
Additional Financial Information section of this report.

Proprietary funds, The City of South Pasadena maintains two types of proprietary funds:
enterprise fund and internal service fund. The enterprise fund is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type aclivities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for the operations for its water and sewer utliities, and
the municipal golf course. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The internal service fund is used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's functions for general liability and
workers’ compensation insurance. Because the internal service operations benefit both
governmental and business-type functions, they have been proportionally allocated and
included within the governmental and business-like activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service fund is provided in the form of
combining statements in this report.

Fiduciary funds. The City of South Pasadena maintains one type of fiduclary fund, a private
purpose trust fund. Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency
capacity for others and therefore cannot be used to support the government's own programs.
The City uses one type of fiduciary fund, a private purpose trust fund, to account for the assets
and liabilities of the former Community Redevelopment Agency.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Other information, In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found in notes to the financial statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
together with information are presented immediately following the notes to the financial
statements.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(C) Government-wide Financial Analysis.

Net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of
the City of South Pasadena, assets exceeded liabliities by $77,650,459 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year. This represents an increase of $4,953,247 or 7% from the prior year,
primarily due to a decrease in construction in progress relating to the Sewer Project, offset by
an Increase in net pension liability and the 2012 State Loan Payable, The proceeds from the
2012 State Loan Payable are used by the City for its rehabilitation and replacement of the City's
sewer infrastructure. The City must expend its own funds prior to drawing on the accessible
loan. Capital Assets are by far the largest portion of the City's net position; $88,332,769 or
114% reflects its investment in non-liquid capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure, buildings, and
equipment). The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

Govarnmental Activitles Businass-Type Activitles Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Cumrent and other agsels $ 27,717,339 § 272680514 5 14,274,295 5 14,784,133 § 41,991,834 § 42,044,647
Capiial assels 62,808,755 £9,774,372 74,217, 620 70,811,858 137,024 375 130,586,231

Tolal assels 90,524,094 87,034,888 88,491,915 85,585,992 179,016,009 172,630,678
Doferrad outflow of resourcas 9,923,516 7.031,413 8,840,100 8,712 800 16,583,816 13,744,213
Long-term l'ablililes 48,591 497 37,867,757 58,327,988 57.391,243 106,919,483 95,258,000
Other llabilities 3,273,859 2,174,738 3,668,754 5,217,584 6,942,613 7,392,323

Tolal fabllitias 51,865,358 40,042,498 61.996,740 62,808,627 113,862.096 102,651,323
Defarred inflow of resources 3,649,673 3,051,477 417,397 220,528 4.067.070 3,272.005
Nat Invasimen In capitel assets 62,608,755 59,774,312 25,526,014 22,302,873 88,332,769 82,077,245
Restricted 6,336,084 6,328,022 1,154,374 2,998,161 7,490,458 9,425,183
Unrestricled [24,210,258) {15,130,068) 6,037,490 4,178,403 {18,172.788) {10,951,665)

Total net posilion $ 44932581 $ 950972326 S 32717878 § 29.4789437 § 77,850,458 S 80.451.783

The second portion of the City net position of $7,490,458 represents special revenue resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Unrestricted net position
shows a deficit balance of ($18,182,768).

The City's governmental current assets increased by $456,825 and capital asssts increased by
$3,032,383, Capital assets increased due to construction activities in street projects.

The City’s business-type current assets decreased by $509,838, due to debt service payments
capital spending on the Garfleld Reservoir Construction project. The City reported a net
increase of $3,405,761 in capital assets due fo an increase in construction-in-progress relating
to the Garfield Reservoir Capital Project and Sewer Project. Upon completion, the City will
transfer the construction-in-progress costs to infrastructure.
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CITY OF‘SOUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental Activities Business-Type Acllvities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Program ravenues:

Charges lor servicas $ 4771481 § 5180333 § 12,611,113 § 11,480 222 § 17,382,594 § 16,670,555

Oparating contributions and granis 872,028 1.471,113 200,167 1,172,193 1,471,113

Capital conlributions and grants 1,325,968 2,418,236 . - 1,325,968 2,418,236
General revonues:

Property laxes 14,135,844 13,236,932 - - 14,135,844 13,236,932

Olher taxes 8,929,003 8,915,921 - - 8,925,003 8,915,921

Intergovernmental - 11,660 - - - 11,660

Use of money and property 650,749 553,165 92,551 (2,802) 743,300 550,363

Other 130,310 28.877 216,693 171,452 347,003 210,329

Total revenues 30,915,381 31,826,237 13,120,524 11,658,872 44,035,905 43,485,109

Expenses:

General government 5,560,722 4,324,484 - - 5,560,722 4,324,484

Publlc safaty 14,624,313 15,596,078 - - 14,624,313 15,596,078

Publlc works 1,037,001 5,529,025 - - 1,037,091 5,528,025

Community sendcos 3,819,654 3,566,285 . - 3,019,654 3,566,285

Community development 5,197,518 1,289,447 . - 5197.516 1,289,447
Water - - 1,060,363 7,028,827 7,060,363 7,028,827
Sewer - - 686,672 1,012,338 686,672 1,012,338
Golf coursa L - 1,006,327 1,032,358 1,096,327 1.032,358

Tolal axpanses 30,239,296 30,305,319 8,843,362 8,073,523 36,082,658 39,378,842

Income before transfers 676,085 1,520,918 4,277,162 2,585,349 4,953,247 4,106,267
Tronsfers LI 24.514 - (24.514) - -
Increase in net posilion 676,085 1,545,432 4,277,162 2,560,835 4,953,247 4,106,267
Net position, begloning, es restated 44,256,488 49,426,854 28,440.716 26,918,602 72,697,212 76,345,486
Net posilion, ending 3 44.932!551 $ 50972326 S 32.717.878 i 20479437 g 77,650,459 S 80451763

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities net position increased by $676,085, after the prior period restatement,
due to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, GASB No.
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, and
GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions.

Business-type Activities

The City's proprietary funds (enterprise and internal service funds) provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financlal statements, but offers more detail in the form
of a statement of cash flows. Unrestricted net position of the fund at the end of the fiscal year
shows $6,037,490. Total net position for these funds was $32,717,878, an increase of
$3,238,441 (15%) over the prior year, due to increases in the capital construction expenses for
the Garfield Reservoir Construction project.

(D) Financlal Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds Is to provide information on near-term inflows and
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful In assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $24,149,604 a decrease of $494,660 from the prior fiscal year. Approximately
43% of fund balances constitute the unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at
the City’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either restricted for projects
undertaken in the Special Revenue Funds (26%), committed by City Councll action for specific
purposes {27%), or represents net position that are non-spendable resources (4%).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $11,182,760, while the total fund balance
reached $17,890,983. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The
unassigned fund balance represents 44% of General Fund expenditures, while the total fund
balance represents 71% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $1,265,803 in the current fiscal year.
This represents an increase of 8% in fund balance from FY 2017. Key factors in this increase
are as follows:

e Tax revenues increased $846,391 or 4%. Property taxes are levied based on assessed
values, although increases in the assessed values of properties with no change in
ownership are generally limited to 2% annually. Property taxes increased by
approximately $900,000 and sales taxes increased by approximately $13,000.

o Charges for Services revenues increased by $13,843 compared to the prior year.

s Public Safety and Community Development Expenditures decreased by $337,255
compared to the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City adopts annual appropriated operating budgets for its governmental funds (General
Fund, Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds) and reports the results of operations on a
budgetary comparison basis. The City also uses annual financial plans as a management tool
for its enterprise funds, although the City does not report the results of these funds on a
budgetary comparison basis.

in preparing its budgets, the City attempts to esfimate its revenues using realistic, but
conservalive, methods so0 as to budget its expenditure appropriations and activiiies in a prudent

manner. As a result, the City Council adopts budget adjustments during the course of the fiscal
year to reflect both changed priorities and avallability of additional revenues to allow for

9.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

expansion of existing programs. During the course of the year, the City Council amended the
originally adopted budget for various additional programs.

The General Fund reflected a net total unfavorable budget variance of ($2,051,468) when
comparing actual amounts to the final budget for the current fiscal year. This budget variance
reflects an unfavorable variance in revenues of ($178,093) and an unfavorable variance in total
expenditures of $1,873,375 due to transfers out from the General Fund.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment In capital assets for its governmental activities and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2018, amounts to $62,806,755 and $74,217,620 (net of
accumulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, park improvements, roadways, vehicles, computer equipment, furniture, other
equipment, and construction in progress.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 in the Notes to
Financlal Statements section of this report.

Long-term debt. Proprietary fund long-term debt decreased ($533,584) during the current
fiscal year due to reduction of principal in the 2013 and 2016 Water Revenue Bonds. Further
details on long-term debt can be found in Notes 5 through 7 in the Notes to Financial
Statements section of this report,

Business-Type Activities

2018 2017
2012 State Loan Payable $ 7415790 §$ 6,373,623
2013 Water Revenue Bonds 5,370,000 8,720,000
Issuance Premium 311,765 339,478
2016 Water Revenue Bonds 36,855,000 37,845,000
Issuance Premium 4,420,816 4,628,854
Total long-term debt $ 54,373,371 § 54,906,955

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

Increases in the confributions toward employee pensions through the Califomia Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) as well as the increasing unfunded liability for Other
Post-Employment Benefits remain serious concems. In order to begin addressing these issues,
the South Pasadena City Council has already commitied $1,000,000 of the General Fund
balance towards funding retiree benefits and has prepaid the annual unfunded liability for both
classic miscellaneous and safety employees

Sales taxes generally are a direct reflection of the general economy. The City has a mature tax
base, with no big box stores or car dealerships, etc. Sales taxes have been increasing. The
City has emerged from recession and receipts have moved back to pre-recession levels.

-10-
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During the 2018 fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund remained substantial
at $11,182,760. The fiscal year 2019 Budgel includes funding for much-needed capital
improvements to the Cily's streets, sewer and water systems, the lalter being funded with
proceeds from the 2016 Water Revenue Bond issue. It remains the inientlon of City
management not to use fund balance reserves for purposes of meeting costs of operations.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial position of the
City of South Pasadena for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions
concemning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be directed to Cralg Koehler, Finance Director,
ckoehler@southpasadenaca.gov, 626.403.7252, or by U.S. mall: Finance Depariment, 1414
Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030.

-11-
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Asseots
Cash and invesiments
Receivables:;

Accounls

Taxes

Notes and loans

Accrued Interest
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted gssets:

Cash and Investments with fiscal agent
Capital assels, not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumnulated depreclation

Tolal assels

Deferred outflows of resources
Delemred loss on debt refunding
Penslon related
OPEB related
Total defarred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued fiabilittes
Accrued Interest
Deposits payable
Noncurrent liabllities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Compensaled absences
Net pension liabilily
Net OPEB liability
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of resources
Pension related
OPEB relaled
Total deferred outflows of resources

Net position
Net invesiment in capital assets
Raslrictad for;
Community development projects
Public safety
Communily services
Public works
Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestrictad
‘Tolal net position {deficit)

The accompanying noies are an integral part of these financial statements.

12~
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Governmental Business-Type
Aclivities Activities Tolal
$ 24966018 $ 12567935 § 37,533,953
141,488 783,381 924,869
836,645 - 836,645
250,000 - 250,000
124,835 51,383 176,218
600,000 (600,000) o
743,908 - 743,908
54,445 317,222 371,667
- 1,154,374 1,154,374
4,300,537 865,013 4,865,550
58,508,218 73,652,607 132,158,825
90,524,094 88,491,915 179,016,009
- 5,681,488 5,681,488
9,365,333 872,241 10,237,574
558,183 86,371 644,554
9,923,516 6,640,100 16,563,616
1,888,183 1,489,995 3,378,188
580,502 24,293 604,795
- 450,656 450,656
805,164 273,059 1,078,223
- 1,430,751 1,430,751
- 52,942,620 52,942,620
801,087 42,291 843,378
33,307,942 3,102,139 36,410,081
14,482,468 2,240,936 16,723,404
51,865,356 61.996.740 113,862,096
2,391,818 222,763 2,614,581
1,267,855 194,634 1,452,489
3,649,673 417,397 4,067,070
62,806,755 25,526,014 88,332,769
1,244,049 - 1,244,049
167,630 - 167,630
1,173,553 - 1,173,553
3,084,087 - 3,094,087
656,765 - 656,765
- 1,154,374 1,154,374
{24,210,258) 6,037,480 {18,172,768)
$ 44932581 § 32717878 § 77,650,459
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental activities:
General government $ 5560722 § 922,603 $ 48,304 $ S
Public safety 14,624,313 1,554,948 173,401 -
Community development 1,037,091 3,160 22,189 -
Communilty services 3,819,654 841,445 25,248 143,601
Public works 5,197,516 1,449,325 702,884 1,182,367
Total governmental activities 30,239,296 4,771,481 972,026 1,325,968
Business-type activilles:
Water 7,060,363 9,830,246 200,167 -
Sewer 686,672 1,614,351 - -
Arroyo Seco Golf Course 1,096,327 1,166,516 - -
Total business-type aclivities 8,843,362 12,611,113 200,167 -
Total Primary Gavernment $§ 239082658 3 17382594 § 1,172,193 8§ 1,325,968
General revenues:
Taxes;
Properiy taxes
Sales taxes
Eranchise taxes
Business license taxes
Utility users tax
Other taxes

Motor vehicle In Hleu

Use of money and property

Other
Total general revenues

Change In Net Position

Net Position - Beginning, as restated

Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of these financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Aclivities Total
$ (4589,815) $ - {4,589,815)
(12,895,964) - (12,895,964)
(1,011,742) s (1.011,742)
(2,809,360) - (2,809,360)
(1.862,940) - (1,862,940)
(23,169,821) - (23,169,821}
- 2,970,050 2,970,050
- 927,679 927,679
- 70,189 70,188
- 3,967,918 3,867,918
(23,169,821) 3,967,918 {19,201,903)
14,135,844 - 14,135,844
3,965,016 - 3,965,016
784,736 - 784,736
389,726 - 389,726
3,345,582 - 3,345,582
430,261 - 430,261
13,682 - 13,882
650,749 92,551 743,300
130,310 216,693 347.003
23,845,906 309,244 24,155,150
676,085 4,277,162 4,953,247
44,256,496 28,440,716 72,697.212
$ 44932581 § 32717878 77,650,459
14~
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
Nonmajer Total
Genaral Governmenial Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Poolcd Cash and Investments $ 17,017,162 $ 7,888,884 $ 24,903,968
Recaivables:
Accounts 138,048 3,440 141,488
Taxes 818,315 17,330 836,845
Notes and {cans 250,000 - 250,000
Accrued Interest 100,636 24,189 124,835
Dus from other governments 397,102 345,806 743,908
Due from other funds 763,612 - 763,812
Advances to other funds 600,000 - 600,000
Inventorias 54,445 . 54,445
Total assels

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabifitles:
Accounts payable
Accrued llabllities

Depesils payable
Due lo other funds

Tolal llabilitles

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavallable revenue

Fund Balances:
Nonspendabla
Inventories
Notos and [oans
Advances to other funds
Restrictad for;
Community developmeni projects
Public sefaty - palica
Community services
Public works - streels and roads
Capital projocts
Public works - street lighting
Committed la;
Caplial projects
Arroya Golf Course Facilily
CalTrans Vacanl Lot Purchascs
Emergency Operations Cenler
Legal Servicas Reserva
Library Expansion
Maintenance Yard/Community Center Reserve
Mantarey Read Improvements
Renewable Energy Sources
Reliree Medical Benefils
Ratireo Pension Benofils
Sidewalk Improvements
Tree Replacomant
Genere! Plan Reserve
Slormwaler Reserve
Library Park Dralpage Reserve
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

$ 20140260 § B.278639 § 26413899

—_————t e

S 888,189 5 997408 §  1,885605
566,526 13,976 560,502
794,552 10,612 805,164

- 763,812 763,812
2249277 1,765,606 4,034,883
- 234,412 234,412
54,445 - 54,445
250,000 - 250,000
600,000 . 600,000
- 1,244,049 1,244,049

- 167,630 167,830

- 1,173,553 1,173,553

5 2,817,340 2,817,340

- 658,765 656,765

. 276,747 276,747

- 796,721 796,721
1,100,000 . 1,100,000
750,000 - 750,000
300,000 . 200,000
500,000 . 500,000
200,000 - 200,000
317,130 . 317,130
500,000 ) 500,000
350,000 - 350,000
500,000 - 500,000
500,000 - 500,800
160,000 . 180,000
50,000 = 50,000
109,848 s 109,648
300,000 . 300,000
147,000 . 147,000
11,182,760 (874.184) 10,308,576
17,890,983 6,258,621 24,149,604
§ 20140260 § 8278639 § 26,418.899

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Fund balances of governmental funds $ 24,149,604

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assels net of depraciation have not been included as financial
resources of the governimental funds. This amount excludes capilaf assels
reported In the infernal service funds. 62,806,755

Defarred cutflows and inflows of resources related to pensions have not been
reparted in the govemmental funds. These amounts exclude penslon related
deferred outflow and Inflows reported in the internal service funds.

Pension related deferred outflows of resources $ 9365333
Pension related deferred inflows of resources (2,391,818}
Other post-employmant benefits related deferred inflows of resources {1,257,855)

Other post-employment benefits related deferred outflows of resources

558,183

6,273,843
Long-term llabillties are not due and payable In the current period and are not

reported in the governmental funds.

Compensaled absences (801,087)
Net penston llabllity (33,307,842)
Other post-employment benefits obligation {14.482.468)

{(48,591,497)
Unavallable revenues are not available to pay for current expenditures,

therelore, are deferred in the govemmental funds but are recognized as
revenusas In the statement of activities 234,412

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of aclivities to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities are included In govemmental activities in the statemsent

of nat position, 59,464

Net position (deflcit) of governmental activities $ 44,832,581

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-16-
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CITY

OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues
Taxes
Assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscallzneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General govermnment
Public safety
Communily development
Community services
Public works

Capilal outlay

Total expenditures

Net change In fund balance

Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmenial

Fund Funds Funds
$ 21251027 % 1576872 §$ 22,827,899
- 890,227 890,227
935,633 65,716 1,001,349
1,512 1,373,085 1,374,597
3,401,310 310,506 3,711,816
579,006 71,743 650,749
388,061 - 388,061
- 16,135 16,135
- 54,548 54,548
28,556,548 4,358,832 30,915,381
4,437,568 206,307 4,643,875
13,223,377 - 13,223,377
1,033,508 3,585 1,037,091
2,987,734 583,169 3,570,903
1,827,619 1,467,220 3,294,839
1,780,942 3,859,014 5,639,956
25,290,746 6,119,295 31,410,041
1,265,803 (1,760,483) {494,660)
16,625,180 8,019,084 24,644,264
$ 17,690,983 $ 6,258,621 $ 24,149,604

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GV OF SOUTH PASADENA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net changes in fund balances - tolal governmental funds $ (494,660)
Amounts reported for govarnmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital cullay as expenditures, However in the
statement of activities, tha cost of those assets [s allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreclalion expense. This is the amount by
which depreciation exceeded capital outlay In the current period:

Capital asset expenditures, nat of deletions of capltal assets $ 5,680,750
Depreciation expense, nel of deletlons of capilel assets (2,648,367)

3,032,383
Certain revenues In the governmental funds ara deferred Inflows of resources
because they are measurable but not available under the modified accrual
basis of accounting. However, the revenues are Included on the accrual
basls used in the government-wide statements. This amount represents
the change during the year:
Grants end other reimbursement revenue

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do nol require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Changs in compensated absencas 21,984
Changes in other post-employment benefits related items {263,080)
Changes In pension related ltems (1,380.600)

{1,631,696)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certaln activiles to Individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the
intemal service funds Is included In the statement of activities. (229,942)

Changes In net position of governmental activities $ 676,085

The accompanying noies are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CTTY OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
Business-Typs Aclivities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Arroyo Seco Internat Service
Water Sewer Galf Course Total Fund
ASSETS
Currant assels:
Cash and investments § 9619023 § 2626208 $ 322614 $ 12567935 S 62,052
Raceivablas;
Accounts 724,508 58,873 - 763,381 .
Accrued inlerast 43,955 7,387 4 51,383 -
Inventorles 304,425 - 12,797 a1r222 -
Restricted:
Cash and Investments with fiscal agent 1,154,374 - - 1,154,374 -
Total current assets 11,846,285 2,602,558 335452 14,874,205 62,052
Noncurrent assets:
Capilal assals, not deprecialed §65,013 - - 565,013 -
Capilal assets, nat of depreclalion 62,673,842 10,057,255 921,510 73,652,607 -
Total noncurrent assols 63,238,855 10,057,255 921,510 74,217,620 -
Total agsats 75,085,140 12,749,813 1,256,962 £9,091,915 62,052
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on debt refunding 5,681,488 - - 5,681,488 -
Pension related 698,203 174,036 - 872,241 -
OPEB related 71,997 14,374 - 86,371 -
Totaf deferred outflows of resources 6,451,688 188,412 - 6,640,100 -
LIABILITIES
Current Habliilies:
Accounts payable 1,456,943 4,010 29,042 1,489,595 2,588
Accrued labilities 19,572 4,721 - 24,293 -
Accrued Interest 450,656 - - 450,656 -
Deposils payable 273,058 - - 273,059 -
Compensated absences 3,757 472 - 4,229 -
Bonds payable 1,430,751 - - 1,430,751 -
Total current llsbilities 3,634,738 9,203 29,042 3,672,983 2,568
Noncurrant liabilities:
Advances from other funds - 600,000 - 600,000 .
Compensated absences 33,812 4,250 - 38,062 -
OPEB Llabillity 1,868,004 372,932 - 2,240,926 -
Nal pension liabliity 2,483,168 618,971 - 3,102,139 -
Loans payable - 7.415,790 - 7,415,780 -
Bands payable 45,526,830 - - 45,526,830 -
Total noncurrent fiabifities 49,911,814 9,011,943 - 58,923,757 -
Total lisbilities 53,546.552 9,021,146 29,042 62,596,740 2,580
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension relsted 178,315 44,448 - 222,763 -
OPEB related 162,243 32,391 - 194,634 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 340,558 76,839 - 417,397 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels 21,963,039 2,641,465 921,510 25,526,014 -
Restricled 1,154,374 - - 1,154,374 -
Unrestricted 4,532,305 1,198,775 306.410 6,037,490 59,464
Total net pesition (deficit) 27,649,718 § 3,840,240 $ 1,227,920 5 32717878 & 59,484

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and service charges
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration and general
Pumping
Transmission/collaction
Trealment
Insurance costs and claims
Depreclation expense

Tola! operaling expenses

Operating Income {loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interast ravenus
Inlerest expense

Operaling grants and contributlons

Capital projects
Miscellanaous expenses

Total non-operating revenues (expensas)

Change In net position

NET POSITION

Net position, baginning, as restated

Net positian, ending

Business-Type Activities - Enlerprise Funds Governmenial
Activities -
Arrcyo Seco Intemnel Service
Waler Sewer __Golf Course Total Fund
$ 9830246 5 1694351 § 1,165516 § 12611,113 § -
216,693 - - 216,693 -
10,046,939 1,614,351 1,166,516 12,827,806 -
876,945 413,733 1,081,842 2,352,620 -
1,162,253 - - 1,162,253 -
2,556,035 - - 2,556,035 -
- 175,661 - 175,661 -
- 5 . - 279,942
630,900 93,028 34,385 758,313 -
5,226,133 682,422 1,096,327 7,004,882 229,942
4,820,806 931,929 70,189 5,822,924 229,942
77,664 14,418 4mM 92,551 -
{1,832,700) {4.250) - (1,836,850) -
200,167 - - 200,167 -
{1,530) = - {1,530) d
{1.556,399) 10,168 471 {1,545,762) -
3,264,407 842,095 70,660 4,271,162 (229,942)
24,385,311 2,898,145 1,157,260 28,440,716 289,406
$ 27.649.718 3 3840240 § 12270520 $ 32,717,878 $ 59,464

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Subject to Change
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activitles
Cash recelved from customers and users
Cash pald to suppliers for goods and servicos
Cash pald to employees for services
Cash received from {paymenis 1o} others
Not cash provided by {used for) operating activilles

Cash flows from noncapital financing activitles
Cash pald to alher funds
Net cash used {or noncapital
financing activitfes

Cash flows from capilal and related financing activiiles
Proceads from capltal debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principat pald on caplial debl
Intarast pald on capital dabt
Net cash used for capital and related financing activillos

Cash flows from invosting activities
Interest received
Net cash provided by Investing aclivives

Nct Increasa (decrease) In cash and cash equivalonts
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash squivalents, end of yaar

Cash and invosimenils
Restricted:
Cash and Investments with flscal agent

Total cash and cash equlivalents

Reconclilation of operating Income (lass) to net cash
provided by {used for) oparating activitios:

Operaling Incoma {ioss)
Adjustmants lo reconcile operaling income (loss)} o
net cash provided by {used for} oparating activitles:

Depracialion

{Increase) decrease in oporating assets:
Accounts recaivable
Inventories
Delarred oulllows of resources

Increase (decrease) in operaling lisbililies;
Accounis payable
Accrued llabilitles
Compensaled absencas
Net pension liabifity
OPEB llabllily
Defemed inflows of resources

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating sctivitles

Business-Typa Actlvitios - Entacprise Funds Govemments!
Actlvities -

Arroyo Seco Intarnal Service

Water Sewer Golf Course Total Funds

$ 10377562 § 1657663 § 1166516 § 13,201,741 $ -

{5,431,221) {1.212,551) (1,064,225) (7,707,997} {227,948)
243,663 53,623 - 247,286 -
216,693 - - 216,693 .

5,406,697 498,735 102,291 8,007,723 (227,948)
- {150,000) - {150,000 -
- (150,000) = {150,000} -
200,167 - - 200,167 -
(2,710,449) (1,308,614) (145,012) {4,164,075) -
{1,575,751) 1,042,167 - {533,554) -
{1,583,555) {18,250} - (1.602.805) -
{5,669,588) {285,697) (145,012) (6,100,297} -
42,749 9962 516 §3,227 -
42,748 9,962 516 53.227 -

{220,142) 73,000 (42,205) {189,347) {227,548)

10,993,539 2,553,208 354,819 13,911,656 250,000

$ 10773397 S 2626208 $ 322614 § 13722309 § 62052

$ 95619023 § 2626208 S 322614 § 12567935 § 62,052
1,154,374 - - 1,154,374 .

$.10773397 S 2626298 S 322814 S 13722309 § 62,032

$ 4820806 § 931520 $ 70189 5 5822924 5 (220,942
£30,500 93,026 34,385 758,313 -
547,316 43312 - 590,626 -
(36,364) - {4,158) (40,519) -
(85,301) {18,548) . {103,849) -
(799,624) (623,157) 1,872 {1,420,908) 1,994

2,104 433 . 2,537 .
9,612 908 = 10,520 =
276,387 64,078 . 340,465 =
(129,117) (25,777)
169,978 33,528 s 202,507 =
585,891 {432.184) 32,102 184,799 1,994

$ 5406687 § 498735 $ 102291 § 6.007.723 _§__ [(227,848)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Che
SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets
Pooled cash and investments
Interest receivable
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Total assets

Liabilities
Accrued interest
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Fiduciary Net Position (Deficit)
Held in trust for other purposes

Private Purpose
Trust Fund

Successor
Agency of the
Former CRA

$ 64,969
444

198,743

264,156

10,928

130,000
965,000

1,105,928

3 (e0772)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Private Purpose

Trust Fund
Successor
Agency of the
Former CRA
Revenues
Taxes $ 194,258
Use of money and property 3,186
Total revenues 197,444
Expenses
Interest expense 71,716
Total expenses 71,716
Changes in nel position 125,728
Net position (deficit) held in trust, beginning {967,500)
Net paosition {deficit) held in trust, ending $ (841.772)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY

OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note

1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

A. Description of Entity

o wHs

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
these financial statements present the City of South Pasadena, California (the City) and Its
component units, entities for which the City is considered financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
Government's operation, so data from these units are combined herein. The criteria used In
determining the scope of the reporting entity is based on the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 14 as amended by Statement 39, 61 and 80 and were as follows:

1. The members of the City Council also act as the governing body of the City of South
Pasadena Housing Authority (the Authority).

2. The Authority is managed by employees of the City.
3. The Authority is financially interdependent with the City.

The City of South Pasadena was incorporated on March 2, 1888, under the general laws of
the State of California. The City provides a full range of municipal services, including public
safely (police and fire), streets, sanitation, refuse collection, sewer, water, parks and
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, housing and community
development, and general administrative and support services.

Blended Component Units

City of South Pasadena Housing Authority - The Authority was established pursuant to
California Housing Authorities Law (Health and Safety Code Sections 34200 et seq.) on
April 6, 2011. The purpose of the Housing Autharity Is to provide safe and sanitary housing
opportunities for South Pasadena residents. The primary government has operational
responsibility for the Housing Authority. Although the Housing Authority is legally separate,
it is reported as if it were part of the City because the City Council also serves as the
governing board of the Housing Authority. Separate financial statements of the Housing
Authority are not prepared. Additionally, the Housing Authority took over the housing
aclivities from the former Community Redevelopment Agency due to its dissolution on
January 31, 2012.

. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial slatements (i.e. the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and ils component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund
financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supporied by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {continuad)

The statement of aclivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
funclion or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment, Program revenues Include: 1)
charges to cusiomers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment, Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds, proprletary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govemment-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financlal Statement Presentation

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability s Incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financlal resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be avallable when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues
to be available If they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incumed, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of
the current period. Ali other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the govemment.

The proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

-25-

30-43



Draft

Subject to Cha
) ciTY Oano%m PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

» The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

o The Water Fund is used to account for the construction, operation, and maintenance of
the City-owned water system,

» The Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of sewer construction,
maintenance, and operation services to residents of the City.

The City's fund structure also includes the following fund types:

» The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the former
community redevelopment agency and its allocated revenue to pay estimated
installment payments of enforceable obligations until obligations of the former
community redevelopment agency are paid in full and assets have been liquidated.
Please refer to Note 10 for more information.

« The |pternal Service Fund is used to accumulate and allocate costs intemally among
the City's functions for general liability and worker's compensation insurance. Because
the internal service operations benefit both governmental and business-type functions,
they have been proportionally allocated and included within the governmental and
business-like activities in the government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the
government's proprietary funds function and various other functions of the govemment.
Elimination of these charges would distart the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (continued)

Proprietary funds and intemal service fund distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from nonoperating Items, Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods In connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assels. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, It Is the
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing govemmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The City
has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB.

. Assats, Deferred Outfiows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position or Equity

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are constdered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are
shown as both restricted and unrestricted cash and investments in the Governmental and
Proprietary Funds.

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The
City's policy is generally o hold investments uniil maturity or until market values equal or
exceed cost. The State Treasurers Invesiment Pool operates in accordance with
appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the
fair value of the pool shares.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds"
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans), or “advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due toffrom other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the govermnment-wide
financial statements as "internal balances."

All frade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
amounts.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property tax revenue is recognized In the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied
providing they become available. Available means when due, or past due and receivable
within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. The County of Los Angeles callects property taxes for the City, Tax liens attach
annually as of 12:01 A.M. on the first day in January proceeding the fiscal year for which
the taxes are levied. The tax levy covers the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured
personal property taxes and one-half of the taxes on real property are due November 1; the
second installment is due February 1. All taxes are delinquent, if unpaid, after December 10
and April 10, respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes become due on the first of
March each year and are delinquent after August 31.

Functional Classifications

Expenditures of the Govemmental Funds are classified by function. Functional
classifications are defined as follows:

General Government includes legislative activities which have a primary objective of
providing legal and policy guidelines for the City. Also Included in this classification are
those activities which provide management or support services across more than one
functional area.

Public Safety includes those activities which involve the protection of people and property.

Community Development includes those activities which involve the enhancing of the
general quality of life.

Communily Services includes activities such as administering the Senior Center, recreation
classes, and special events committees.

Public Works includes those activities that involve the maintenance and improvement of
City streets, roads and park department development and maintenance.

Capital Outlay includes those activities that account for the acquisition of capital assets.
Invenlories

Inventory consisting primarily of materials and supplies is held by the Water Enterprise
Fund. Such goods are valued using the average-cost method applied on a first-in, first-out

(FIFO) basis. Inventories reported in the City's General Fund are charged to inventories
when purchased and treated as an expenditure when issued,
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CITY

OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcies (continued)

Restricted Assels

Certain proceeds of debt Issues, as well as certain resources set aside for thelr repayment,
are classified as resiricted assets on the balance sheet and statement of net position
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. In addition, funds have been
restricted for future capital improvements by City resolution.

Capifal Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns In the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the City as asseis with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
for non-infrastructure assets and $25,000 for infrastructure assets (amount not rounded).
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date
of donation.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported current and prior year's
Infrastructure assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capilal assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 10-25
Machinery and equipment 3-30
Vehicles 8
infrastructure Years
Sewer collection system 60
Storm drain system 60
Bridges 60
Hardscape 40
Parkways and medians 40
Pavement, curbs and gutters, and sidewalks 35
Streetlights 20
Electronic traffic control devices 20
-29.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Signlificant Accounting Policies (continued)
Deferred Quiflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and balance sheet of governmental
funds will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resourcés. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet of governmental
funds will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separale financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one item, which
arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reparted only in the governmental
funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from three
sources. properly taxes, special assessments, and reimbursable grants billed but not yet
available, These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available.

Net Positlon Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate
the amounts to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when
the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed
fund balance is depleted first, followed by asslgned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance
is applied last.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)
Compensated Absences

It Is the policy of the City to record the cost of annual vacation as accrued. Employees are
100% vested in accrued vacation after six months of employment. The entire compensated
absence liability for the Enterprise Fund is accrued as earned in the Enterprise Fund. All
accumulated compensated absence liability of governmental funds is accrued when
Incurred in the government-wide financial statements. Compensated absences are reported
in governmental funds only if they have matured.

It is the policy of the City to pay sick leave as used; accordingly, the expenditures are
recorded when paid. Sick leave does not vest with employees. Accordingly, employees do
not receive a payout for unused sick leave upon termination, although employees do
receive credit for unused sick leave upon retirement.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, defemred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value, CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be
obtained at CalPERS' website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
Information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are

used.
Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2016
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2017
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this
purpose, benefit payments are reported at fair value.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to
fiability and asset information within certain defined timeframes, For this report, the
following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) January 1, 2017
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2017
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obllgations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position,

Fund Equity

In the fund financia! statements, governmental funds report the following fund balance
classification:

Nonspendable include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or {b} legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Include amounts that are constrained on the use of resources by elther (a)
external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws of regulations of other governments or
(b} by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the govemment's highest authority, City
Councll. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish, madify, or rescind a
fund balance commitment is a resolution of the City Council.

Assigned include amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council, with
Resolution No. 7152, authorized the Finance Director to assign fund balance amounts
for specific purposes.

Unassigned include the residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes. The General Fund is the only fund that can report a
positive unassigned fund balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

An individual governmental fund could include nonspendable resources and amounts that
are restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) or any combination of
those classifications. Restricted amounts are to be considered spent when an expenditure
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available
and committed, assigned, and then unassigned amounts are considered to have been
spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those
unrestricted fund balances classifications can be used.

The City Council adopts and amends commitied and assigned fund balance amounts for
spaclfic purposes through a resolution. When expenditure Is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the City considers restricted
amounts to be used first. When expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in
any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, they are considered to
be spent in the order as follows: committed, assigned, and then unassigned.

Net Position

In the govemment-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, net
position is classified as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net position consists of capital
assels, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the oultstanding balances of debt
that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted ~ This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by
liabilitles and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets,

Unrestricted — This component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred
outilows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included
in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of
net position.

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses, during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (continued)
F. Implementation of New Accounting Principle

GASB has issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Paostemployment Benefits other than Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement Is to
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and locat governments for other
postemployment benefits (OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.
This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.

This pronouncement has been implemented for purposes of measuring the net OPEB
liability and any related deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB
expense/expenditures.

Note 2: Cash and Investments

Cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net position:

Cash and investments $ 37,533,953
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1,154,374

Statement of fiduciary net position:
Cash and investments 64,969
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 198,743
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 38,952,039

Cash and investments at June 30, 2018, consists of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Petty cash $ 9,235
Deposits with financial institutions 5,784,685
Investments 33,158,118

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 38,952,039

The City of South Pasadena maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use for all
funds. Each fund type's position in the pool is reported on the combined balance sheet as cash and
investments, The City has adopted an investment policy which authorizes it to invest in various
investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued)
A. Deposits

At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $5,7684,684 and the bank
balance was $7,262,047. The $1,477,363 difference represents outstanding checks and
other reconciling items.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan
associations to secure a City's deposils by pledging government securities with a value of
110% of a City's deposits. Califomnia law also allows financial Institutions to secure City
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a City’s total
deposits. The City Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits which are
fully insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. The collateral for deposits in federal and state
chartered banks is held in safekeeping by an authorized Agent of Depository recognized by
the State of California Department of Banking. The collateral for deposits with savings and
loan assoclations is generally held in safekeeping by the Federal Home Loan Bank in San
Francisco, California as an Agent of Depository. These securities are physically held in an
undivided pool for all California public agency depositors.

Under Government Code Section 53655, the placement of securities by a bank or savings
and loan association with an “Agent of Depository” has the effect of perfecting the security
interest in the name of the local governmental agency. Accordingly, all collateral held by
California Agents of Depository are considered to be held for, and in the name of, the local
governmental agency.
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Note 2: Cash and Investments {continued)

B. Investments

Under provision of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of
the California Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of Investments:

Authorized by Maximurm Maximum Minimum
Investment  Maximum Percenlage Investment Quality

Authorized Invesiment Type Palicy Maturity _of Portfolio  In One Issuer Requlrements
Local Agency Bonds Yes 5 years None None N/A
U.S. Treasury Obligations Yes S years None None N/A
Stale Obligations - CA & Others Yes 5 years None None N/A
CA Loacal Agency Obligations Yes § years None None N/A
U.S. Agency Obligations Yes 5 years None None N/A
Banker's Acceplances Yes 180 days 40% 30% NIA
Commercial Paper - Selact Agencies Yes 270 days 25% 10% A-1
Commerclal Paper - Other Agencies Yes 270 days 40% None A1
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 0% None NIA
CD Placement Service Yas 5 years 30% None NIA
Repurchase Agreemenis Yas 1 year None Nona N/A
Reversa Rapurchase Agreaments Yes 02 days 20% Nane N/A
Medium-Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% NiA A
Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10% N/A
Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10% N/A
Collateralized Bank Deposits Yes 5 years None None N/A
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None AA
Bank/Time Depasits Yas 5 years None None NIA
County Paoled Invastment Funds Yes N/A None None N/A
Joinl Powers Authority Pool Yes N/A None None N/A
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes NIA None None NIA
Voluntary Investment Program Fund Yas N/A None None NIA

The City has monies held by trustees or fiscal agents pledged to the payment or security of
certain bonds. The California Government Code provides that these monies, in the absence
of specific statutory provisions goveming the issuance of bonds, may be invested in
accordance with the ordinance, resolutions, or indentures specifying the types of
investments its trustees or fiscal agents may make.

. Investments in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by Californla Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the
Treasurer of the State of California. LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment
Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with State statute. The
State Treasurer's Office audits the fund annually. The fair value of the position in the
investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued)

D. Credit Risk

The City's investment policy limits investments in medium-term notes (MTN's) to those
rated “A" or betler by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Investments in U.S. government securities are not considered to have credit risk and,
therefore, their credit quality is not disclosed.

Presented below is the minimum rating required by the City’s Investment Policy and the
actual rating as of June 30, 2018;

Rating o3 of Fiscal Yasr End
Mirkmum Legel Erempt from
drvestmart Jrpe o Amount  _ Raling = Qhchwre _  AM Ads A M A A s __MolRaled
Lol Agancy Irvesrent Fund 3 16,8509 RIA 5 L ] . s P | L ] - $ - 8 R ] R R XL 11 ]
Maret Mutial Fundy 24,34 A - . . . - . . . U2
U, Treansy Kolaa 221224 NA 8213248 . . . . . .
‘Govemmenl Agency Sacutien 8.500.604 A - - 5529004 . . . . - .
Mudium-Tam Kotey 4581316 A . 1,813 20,502 113,200 481N tusee) 120107 PR ¥-ctd 5
Tatat $ 33138119 3 A3 3 LD f Seduios . TININU § ajaviy 3 GOSEE § 207030 3 4104237 $10.855984

E. Custedial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Of the bank balances,
up to $250,000 is federally insured and the remaining balances are collateralized in
accordance with the Califomia Government Code.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City's investment policy imposes restrictions on the percentage that the City can invest
in a single type of investment in accordance with CA Government Code. in addition, GASB
40 requires a separate disclosure if any single issuer comprises more than 5% of the total
investment value. As of June 30, 2018, investments in any one issuer (other than U.S.
Treasury securities, mutual funds, and extemnal investment pools) that represent 5% or
more of total City investments are as follows:

Raported & months 1o 1 1te 3 s
Investnient Type Issuer Amount Interast Rele year years yosars

Federal National Mortgage Assoclation FNMA § 2277157 1.625%-1875% $ 363,283 § 959855 S 854,019
Federal Home Loan Morlgage Corporalion  FHLMC 2,610,095 1.250% - 2.375% - - 2,610,095
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued)

G. Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment maturities, in accordance with CA
Government Code, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. The certificates of deposit in cash with fiscal agent below with a
maturity of three to five years are governed by the debt agreements, rather than the City's
investment policy. The Clty has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of
disclosure for its interest rate risk.

As of June 30, 2018, the City had the following investments and original maturities:

Remaining Malurity {in months)
6 months to 1

Investment Type 6 months or less year 1 1o 3 years 3 to 5 years Tolal
Local Agency Investment Fund § 16,835,690 - - - $ 16,835,680
Money Market Mutual Funds 24,209 - - - 24,284
U.S. Treasury Notes 1,223,549 408,370 4,580,337 - 6,213,256
Govemmant Agency Secuyrities 363,283 959,855 4,200,466 - 5,523,604
Medium-Term Noles 236,824 778,678 3,645773 - 4,561,275

$§ 18683640 S 2147903 % 12,326,576 _§ $ 33,158,118

H. Fair Value Measurements

The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a fiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by the generally accapted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets; level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The following table presents the balances of the assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of June 30, 2018.

Invesimant by Fair Value Level Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Dabl securities:
Money Market Mutual Funds § 24294 % 24294 § - $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 6,213,256 6,213,256 - -
Government Agency Securllies 5,523,604 5,523,604 - -
Medium-Term Notes 4,561,275 4,561,275 - -
Total Investrrenls measured at fair value 16,322,429 5 18,322429 3§ - 8 -
Investments measured al amortized cost
LAIF 16,835,690
Total investments $ 33,158,119
-38-~
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Note 3: Capltal Assets

Capital asset activity was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Governmental actlvities:

Capital assets, not belng depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Tolal capital assets, not belng
depraciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than bulldings
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Infrastructurs

Total capital assets, being depreclated

Lass accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
improvements other than buildings
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capltal assets, belng
depreciated, net

Total governmental aclivities

Balance Balance
Junse 30, 2017 Additlons Deletions June 30, 2018
2116515 § 340480 § - $ 2,456,995
1,433,113 4,940,871 {4,530,442) 1,843,542
3,549,628 5,281,351 {(4,530,442) 4,300,537
11,425,230 315,166 - 11,740,396
3,026,023 2,468,538 - 5,494,561
10,368,805 456,175 - 10,824,980
88,335,621 1,689,962 - 90,025,563
113,155,679 4,929,841 - 118,085,520
(6,601,902) {209,161) (6,811,063)
(1,029,166) {100,613) (1.129,779)
(6,971,481) (470,122) {7.441,603)
(42,328,386) (1,868,471) (44,196,857)
(56,930,935) {2,648,367) - (59,579,302}
56,224,744 2,281,474 - 58,506,218

$ 597749372 § 7,562,825 § (4,530,442) $ 62,806,755

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

Govemmental Activities:
General government

Public safety

Community services

Public warks

Total depreciation expense — governmental aclivities

-39-
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Note 3: Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities:

Capital assets, not belng depreciaied:
Land
Constructlon in progress

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assels, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assels, being
depreclated, net

Tolal business-lypa actlvilies

Balance Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
$ 84885 % e $ - $ 84,685

48,193,597 2,671,131 (48,384,400) 480,328

46,278,282 2,671,131 (48,384,400) 565,013

4,171,553 - - 4,171,553
3,943,701 161,920 - 4,105,621
24,423,486 49,676,105 - 74,099,591
1,783,647 39,319 - 1,822,966
34,322,387 49 877,344 - 84,198,731
{975,311) (72,408) - {1,047,719)
(3,245,864) (33,828) - (3,279,692}
(4,698,676} (567,864) - (5,266,540)
{868,959) (84,214) - {953,173)
(9,768,810) (758,314) - {10,547,124)

24,533,577 49,119,030

73,652,607

$ 70.811.859 _§ 51,790,161 _9$ (48,384,400) §$ 74,217,620

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

Business-type Activities:

Water
Sewer

Arroyo Seco Golf Course
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities
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Note 4: Interfund Receivable, Payable and Transfers
A. Due To/From Other Funds

At June 30, 2018, the City had the following interna! balances:

Due To Other Funds
Nonmajor
Due From Qther Funds Funds Total
General Fund $ 763,612 9 763,612

The due to General fund of $763,612 for various nonmajor governmental funds was a result
of temporary cash deficit balances in those funds.

B. Advances to/from Other Funds

The General Fund advanced $750,000 to the Sewer Fund on July 11, 2012, in order to fund
the construction of the Arroyo Drive, Marengo Ave, Meridian Ave, and Hunfington Drive
Sewer Improvement Project. The advance bears interest at the City's portfolio rate of
retum, with payments due within ten years. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2018 is
$600,000.

Note 5: Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018 One Year
Business-Type Activities:
2012 State Loan Payable $ 6373623 § 1,042,167 $ - $ 7415750 S -

20113 Water Revenue Bonds 5,720,000 - {350,000) 5,370,000 360,000
Issuance Premium 339,478 - (27,713) 31,765 27,713
2016 Waler Revenue Bonds 37,845,000 - {990,000) 36,855,000 835,000
Issuance Premlum 4,628,854 - {208,0308) 4,420,816 208,038

Tolal Business-Type Aclivilies $ 54,906,955 § 1,042,167 $ {1.575.751) _§ 54.373371_ S 1,430,751

2012 State Loan Payable

California State Water Resources Control Board loaned the City an assessable amount of
$11,000,000 aver the term agreement starting December 1, 2013 through May 30, 2037. The
proceeds from the loan are to be used by the City for its rehabilitation and replacement of the
City's sewer infrastructure. The loan acts as an installment sale agreement, in which, the City
must expend its own funds prior to drawing on the accessible loan amount for reimbursement.
Repayment of project funds, together with all interest accrued thereon, by the City shall be
repaid in annual installments commencing 1 year after the completion of the project. For the
period ended June 30, 2018, the amount payable to the California Stale Waler Resources
Control Board was $7,415,790.
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Note 5: Long-Term Debt (continued)

2013 Water Revenue Bonds

In March, 2013, the South Pasadena Public Financing Authority issued $6,995,000 Water and
Wastewater Revenue Bonds, 2013 Series A. The bonds were issued to refund of a portion of
the outstanding California Statewide Communities Development Authority Water and
Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A that were Issued on behalf of the City of South
Pasadena, to purchase a surety for a reserve fund for the Bonds, and to pay costs of issuance
of the bonds. The bonds are secured by a pledge of system net revenues of the City's water
system,

Bond proceeds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as
restricted asseis on the balance sheet because their use Is limited by applicable bond
covenants. [n addition, funds have been restricted for future capital improvements by City
resolution.

The serial bonds mature annually from October 1, 2014 to October 1, 2029, in increasing
amounts from $325,000 to $545,000. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from.35% to
3.4%. The term bonds mature on October 1, 2029, and carry an interest rate of 5.0%. Interest
is payable semi-annually on April 1 and Ociober 1, commencing on Oclober 1, 2014 and
October 1, 2029, respectively.

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding bond indebtedness as of June 30, 2018,
including interest are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 360,000 $ 188,988 § 548,988

2020 375,000 174,288 549,288
2021 390,000 158,988 548,288
2022 405,000 143,088 548,088
2023 420,000 128,688 548,688
2024-2028 2,360,000 386,663 2,736,663
2029-2030 1,070,000 33,750 1,103,750
Total _$ 5370,000 $ 1,214453 § 6,584,453
-42-
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Note 5: Long-Term Debt (continued)

2016 Water Revenue Bonds

In November, 2016, the City of South Pasadena issued $37,845,000 Water Revenue
Refunding Bonds. The bonds were issued to refund all of the outstanding 2009 Water Revenue
Bonds, purchase a municipal bond insurance policy to guarantee payment of the principal of
and interest on the 2016 bonds and to pay costs of issuance of the 2016 bonds.

The serial bonds mature annually from October 1, 2017 to October 1, 2036, in amounts from
$835,000 to $2,610,000. The honds bear interest at rates ranging from 2% to 5%. The term
bonds mature on October 1, 2039, and carry an interest rale of 5.0%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on April 1 and October 1, commencing and ending on April 1, 2017 and April 1, 2037,

respectively,

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding bond indebtedness as of June 30, 2018,

including interest are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 835,000 §$ 1,598,087 2,433,087
2020 850,000 1,576,988 2,426,988
2021 880,000 1,551,038 2,431,038
2022 905,000 1,519,738 2,424,738
2023 945,000 1,482,738 2,427,738
2024-2028 5,470,000 6,663,438 12,133,438
2029-2033 8,730,000 5,031,563 13,761,563
2034-2038 12,455,000 2,394,116 14,849,116
2039-2040 5,785,000 186,847 5,981,847
Total $ 36855000 § 22,014,553 § 58,869,553

Note 6: Compensated Absences

The City's liability at June 30, 2018 for vested and unpaid compensated absences (accrued

vacation and compensatory time) is as follows:

Balance Balance Dua Within
June 30, 2017 Additions Delelions June 30, 2018 One Year
Governmental activities $ 823,071 % 683,486 & (716,470) % 801,087 $ 80,109
Business-type activitios 31,771 44,517 {30,997) 42,291 4,229
Total compensated absences
payable $ 854,842 § 735,003 § (746,467) S 843,378 3% 84,338

Compensated absences are paid, if matured, out of the General Fund and other various special

revenue funds.
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30-61



Draft
Subject t

o Chanae
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 7: City Employees Definaed Benefit Pension Plan

A. General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description
Miscellaneous Plan

The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the
pension plan regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for
funding, but not accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the plan's
June 30, 2016 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report {funding valuation). Details of the benefits
provided can be obtained in Appendix B of the actuarial valuation report, This report and
CalPERS' audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at
CalPERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.,

Safety Plan

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered
by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS.) The Plan consists of
individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and a
miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any
employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the
safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68.
Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety
risk pools. The City sponsors three safety rate plans. Benefit provisions under the Plan are
established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports
that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS' website, at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5
years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the
1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Seitlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement
Law.
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law
(PERL), the Califonia Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the
regulations, procedures and policies adopied by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The
Pian's authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the PERL and PEPRA,
and may be amended by the Califomia state legislature and in some cases require approval
by the CalPERS Board.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Miscallanaous

Prior to On or after
Hira date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesling schedule § years service § years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 87
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% 10 2.418% 1.0% lo 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.50%

9,589% - Classic

Required employer contributlon rates 17.7118% 6.908% - PEPRA

_ Safety

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 50 2.7% @ 57
Beneflt vesting schedule S years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50- 55 50-57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0%102.7% 2.0%1t02.7%
Required employee contribution rates 9.00% 12.75%

17.455% - Classic

Requirad employer contribution rales 29,884% 12,729% - PEPRA

Empioyees Covered

At June 30, 2016 (valuation date), the following employees were covered by the benefit

terms:
Miscellaneous Safety
Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 144 138
Inactive employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 204 38
Active employees 106 50
Total 454 226
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan {continued)

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis
by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change Iin the rate.
The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation
process. For public agency cost-sharing plans covered by either the Miscellaneous or
Safety risk pools, the Plan's actuarially determined rate Is based on the estimated amount
necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool's costs of benefits earned by
employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate
of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended,
Payments made by the employer to salisfy confribution requirements that are identified by
the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classifled as plan
member contributions. Employer Contributions to the Plan for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 were §3,082,379. The actual employer payments of $2,808,028 made to
CalPERS by the City during the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 differed from
the City’s proportionate share of the employer's contributions of $3,564,563 by $756,535,
which is being amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime in the Public
Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Pian.

Net Pension Liability

The City's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
penslon plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of
June 30, 2017, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to
June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures, A summary of principal assumptions and
methods used to determine the net pension liability is as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Measurement Date Juns 30, 2017
Actuarisl Cost Methad Entry Age Normal
Asset Valualion Methed Market Value of Assals
Actuarial Assumplions:

Discaunl Rale 7.15%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases (1} 3.3%-14.2%

Investment Rate of Return (2} 7.15%

Moriallty Rate Table (3) Dernived using CALPERS'

membership data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to 2.75% unlil
purchasing power protection
allowance fioor on purchasing
power applies, 2.75% thereafier

{1) Annual Increases vary by category, eniry age, and duration of service
{2) Net of panslon plan investment and administrative expenses; Incfudes Inflation

{3} The monality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific dala, The table
includes 20 years of mortallly Improvements using Sociely of Actuaries Scale BB. For moro
details on this 1able, please refer to the 2014 experdence study report.
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates
to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be
obtained at CalPERS'’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Change of Assumptions

In fiscal year 2016-17, the financial reporting discount rate for the PERF C was lowered
from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabllity was 7.15 percent and reflects
the long-term expected rate of return for the Plan net of investment expenses and without
reduction for administrative expenses. To determine whether the municlpal bond rate
should be used In the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans (including
PERF C), the amortization and smoothing periods adopted by the Board in 2013 were
used. For the Plan, the crossover teste was performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and
a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing the crossover test and resulting
in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate of return on
pension investments, Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would
not run out, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability for PERF C. The crossover test results can be found on CalPERS’ website, at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

The long-term expected rate of return on penslon plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

in determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took intc account both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the shori-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both
short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The
expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was
then set equai to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for
assumed administrative expenses.

The following table refiects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the

discount rate and asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the
CalPERS Board effective on July 1, 2014,
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Current Target Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 -10" Year 11+*
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.20% 5.36%
Liguidity 2.0% {0.40%) {0.90%)
Total 100.0%

1 An expecled inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 An expected Inflatlon of 3.0% used for this period

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Information about the pension plan's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and fiduclary net position are presented in CalPERS' audited
financial statements, which are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’
website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. The plan's fiduciary net position and additions
to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis used by the pension plan, which is the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may
differ from the plan assets reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to several
reasons. First, for the accounting valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as deficiency
reserves, fiduciary self-insurance and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) expense
included as assets. These amounts are excluded for rate setling purposes in the funding
actuarial valuation. in addition, differences may result from early Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves.
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

The following table shows the Pians' proportionate share of the net pension liability over the
measurement period.

Miscallaneous Pian

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total Pension Plan Fiduclary Net

Liability Position Plan Net Pansion Liability
(a) {b) {c)=(a)-(b)
Balance at: 6/30/2016 (MD) S 44,689,385 | § 33527426 | § 11,161,959
Balance at; 6/30/2017 (MD) 49,340,576 36,480,566 12,859,890
Net Changes during 2016-17 4,661,191 2,953,260 1,697,931
Safety
Increase (Decrease}
Plan Total Pension  Plan Flducfary Net
Liability Position Plan Net Pension Liability
{a) {b) foy=(a)-(b)
Balance at: 6/30/2016 (MD) $ 80,445,101 | $ 59,021,623 { § 20,523,478
Balance at: 6/30/2017 (MD} 86,843,812 63,293,621 23,550,191
iNel Changes during 2016-17 6,398,711 3,371,998 3,026,713

Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD)

The City's net pension liability for each of the cost sharing, multiple-employer Plans is
measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The nel pension liability of
each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability for each
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2016, rolled forward to June 30, 2017, using standard update procedures. The
City's proportion of the net pension liability was determined by CalPERS using the output
from the Acluarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided in the
CalPERS Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly
available report that can be obtained at CalPERS' at www.calpers.ca.gov. The City's
proportionate share of the net pension liabllity for each Plan as of June 30, 2016, and 2017,
was as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Proportionate Share of NPL - June 30, 2016 0.32131% 0.39627%
Proportionate Share of NPL - June 30, 2017 0.32622% 0.39413%
Change - Increase 0.00491% (0.00213%})
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Sensfitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes In the Discount Rate

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the nel pension liability of each
Plan as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7,15 percent, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
Is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than
the current rate:

Discount Rate ~1% | Current Discount | Discount Rate + 1%
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) {B.15%)
Miscellaneous Plan's
Net Pension Liability | $ 19,646,533 | $ 12,859,890 | 7,239,070
Safety Plan's Net
Pansion Liability 3 35,701,122 | $ 23,550,191 | § 13,617,411
Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this
disclosure.

Recognition of Gains and Losses

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary
net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Difference between projected  § year straight-line amortization
and actual eamings '

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected
average remaining service lives of all members
that are provided with bensfits (active, inactive
and retired) as of the beginning of the
measurement period

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total
future service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in
the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (PERF C).
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

The EARSL for the Plan for the 2016-17 measurement period is 3.8 years, which was
obtained by dividing the total service years of 490,088 (the sum of remaining service
lifetimes of the active employees) by 130,595 (the total number of participants: active,
inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining service
lifetimes equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members' probability
of decrementing due to an event other than receiving a cash refund.

. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to Pensions

As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2016), the City’s net pension liability was
$31,685,437. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2017 (the measurement date),
the Clty incurred a pension expense of $3,846,603.

As of June 30, 2018, the City has deferred outflows and deferred Inflows of resources
related to pensions as follows:

Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 5207794 § -
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience - (33,647)
Differences between Projected and Actual
Investment Eamings 1,267,603 -
Diffarences between Employer's Contributions
and Proportionate Share of Contributions - (1,239,075)
Change in Employer's Proportion 589,798 (1,341,859)
Pension Contribulions Made Subsequent to
Measurement Date 3,082,379 -
$ 10,237574 & (2,614,581)

These amounts above are net of oufflows and inflows recognized in the 2016-17
measurement period expense. The $3,082,379 reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as
deferred outllows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal Year Outflows/
Ended (Inflows) of
June 30, Resources, Net_
2019 3 122,498
2020 3,247 373
2021 1,916,460
2022 (745,717)
2023 -
Therealfier -
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Note 7: City Employees Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)
E. Payable to the Pension Plan

Al June 30, 2018, the City reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018,

F. Pension Plan Summary

Miscsllansous plan NPL 3 12,859,890
Safety plan NPL 23,550,191
Combined NPL 5 36,410,081
Governmental NPL $ 33,307,942
Business-type NPL 3,102,139
Total NPL $ 36,410,081

Note 8: Other Post-Employment Benefits
A. Plan Description

The City provides certain other post-employment benefits (OPEB) through a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan which provides health insurance for its retired
employees according to the Personnel Rules and Regulations for each of the five employee
groups. Benefit provisions are included annually in the Memorandum of Understanding
between the City and each of Its employee groups and ultimately passed by Councll action.
Separate financial statements for the plan are not available.

B. Employees Covered

As of the June 30, 2017 measurement date, the following numbers of participants were
covered by the benefit ferms under the Plan:

Active employees 239
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 97
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet recelving benefits 48

Total 384

C. Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be
amended by the City, City Council and/or employee associations. Currently, contributions
are not required from plan members.
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Note 8: Other Post-Employment Beneflts (continued)

The City pays for postemployment health insurance on a pay-as-you-go basis (no

prefunding). For fiscal year 2017-2018, the City paid $644,554 for other posiemployment
benefits,

D. Net OPEB Liability

The City's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation using the
Alternative Measurement Method dated January 1, 2017 that was rolled forward to

determine the June 30, 2017 total OPEB liability, based on the following actuarial methods
and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions June 30, 2017 Measurement Date

Actuarial Valuation Date January 1, 2017

Contribution Palicy No pre-funding

Discount Rate 3.58%

General infiation 2.75%

Mortality, Retirement, Based on CalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study

Disability, Termination

Salary increases 3.00%

Medical Trend Non-Medicare — 7.5% for 2019, decreasing to an
ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later
Medicare — 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an
ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later

Healthcare Participation 90% of employees hired prior to July 1, 2012
50% of employeas receiving PEMHCA minimum

E. Discount Rate

A discount rate of 3.58 percent was used in the valuation for measurement date June 30,
2017.
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Note 8: Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)
F. Changes In the OPEB Llabllity

The changes in the net OPEB liabllity for the Plan are as follows:

(a) (b) (a)-(b}={c)

Plan
Total OPEB Fiduclary Net Net OPEB
Liability Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2017

(6/30/16 measurement date) $ 17,879,331 3 - $ 17,879,331
Changes recognized for the measurement perlod:

Service cost 664,681 - 664,681

Interest 519,308 - 519,308

Changes In assumptions (1,694,570) - (1,694,570}

Benefit payments (645,346) - {645,346)

Net changes {1.155,927) - (1,155,927}
Balance at June 30, 2018

{6/30/17 measurement date) $ 16,723.404 $ - $ 16,723,404

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The foliowing presents the net OPEB liabllity of the City if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the
current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2017:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(2.58%) Rate (3.58%) {4.58%)
Net OPEB Liabllity 8 19,112,462 $ 16,723,404 § 14,768,641

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health
care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2017:

Current Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 15,592,763 § 16,723,404 $ 18,082,578

. OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

As the City is not prefunding with an OPEB trust, Plan Fiduciary Net Position was $0 at the
June 30, 2017 measurement date,

-54-

30-72



Draft

Subiject to Change
ubj tcm' OFnSGOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Note 8: Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)
Recognition of Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in
OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs, The remaining amounts are
categarized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and
are to be recognized in fulure OPEB expense. The net difference between projected and
actual earmnings on OPEB plan investments is amortized using the straight-line method over
5 years, while all other amounts are amortized over the expected average remaining
service lifetime (EARSL) of plan participants.

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $948,342.
As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outfiows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Changes in assumplions $ - ] 1,452,489
Contributions o OPEB plan subsequent to the measurement date 644,554 -
Tolal $ 644,554 $ 1,452,489

The $644,554 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the June 30, 2017 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net OPEB liabllity during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense

as follows:
Deferred
Fiscal Year Ended Qutflows/Inflows)
June 30 of Resources

2019 3 (242,081)

2020 (242,081)

2021 {242,081)

2022 {242,081)

2023 {242,081)

Thereafter {242,084)

$ (1,452,489)
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Note 9: Insurance

The City is partially self-insured for general liability insurance. The City is responsible for claims up
to $100,000 per occurrence. Coverage in excess of the City's self-insured retention Is purchased
through CSAC Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) up to the statutory limits. The City
participates in a risk pool far general liability insurance through CSAC-EIA above the City's self-
insured retention of $100,000 up to $4,900,000 per occurrence. Reinsurance coverage in excess
of the pool layer up to $25,000,000 is purchased through CSAC-EIA. CSAC-EIA retains
responsibility for clalms In excess of each member’s self-insured retention.

For workers' compensation insurance, the City is covered from the first dollar. Coverage between
$1 and $5,000,000 is provided by CSAC-EIA. CSAC-EIA participates in an excess pool which
provides coverage from $5,000,000 to $50,000,000 and purchases excess insurance above
$50,000,000 to the statutory limit.

Workers' compensation and general liability claims incurred prior to July 1, 2014 were covered
through the City's participation in the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority.

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

Due to the occurrence of several spills from the City's sanitary sewer system, the City entered into
a settlement on November 16, 2011, with the Regional Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles
Region and the state Aftorney General for violations of the slate’s general waste discharge
requirements, The settlement required the City to cover fines and attorney fees, complete repairs
to its sanitary sewer system over a 10 year period, and implement specified system maintenance
programs. These requirements will be monitored through an open court proceeding and, if not met;
the City could be subjected to further monetary penalties.

The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of
conducting City business. City management believes that based upon consultation with the City
Attorney, that these cases in the aggregate are not expected to result in a material adverse
financial impact on the City beyond that already accrued for in the basic financial statements.
Additionally, City management believes that sufficient resources are avallable to the City to cover
any potiential losses, should an unfavorable outcome materialize.

Note 11: Successor Agency Trust for Assets of Former Community Redevelopment Agency

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the BIll") that
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action
impacted the reporting entity of the City of South Pasadena that previously had reported a
community redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component
unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a community redevelopment agency, a “successor
agency” is to be established to hold the assets until they are distributed to other units of state and
local government. On January 4, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency
for the former community redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part of City
resolution number 7205.
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Note 11: Successor Agency Trust for Assets of Former Community Redevelopment Agency

(continued)

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, cammunity redevelopment agencies
in the State of California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the
control of a newly established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay
enforceable obligations in existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any
unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments).

Successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former community
redevelopment agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior community redevelopment
agency have been paid in fuli and all assets have been liquidated.

Cash and investments

At June 30, 2018, Cash and investments reported in the accompanying financial statements
consisted of the following:

Cash and investments pooled with the City  § 64,969
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 198,743
$ 263,712

Long-term debt

The following Is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018;

Balance : Balance Due Within
June 30, 2017 _ Additions Deletions June 30, 2018 __ One Year
2000 Tax Allocation Bond  § 1,220,000 S - $ (125,000) $ 1095000 $ 130,000

Total - 3 {125,000) 130,000

3 1095000 _%

$_1,220000 §

A description of long-term debt outstanding (excluding defeased debt) of the Successor Agency
as of June 30, 2018, follows;

2000 Tax Allocation Bonds

In July 2000, the Agency issued $2,600,000 in tax allocation bonds for the Downtown
Revitalization Project No. 1, which mature annually from May 1, 2001 to May 1, 2025, in
increasing amounts from $55,000 to $195,000, plus Interest at 4.4% to 6.0%, payable
semiannually on May 1 and November 1, commencing on November 1, 2000. Bonds are
subject to redemption at the option of the Agency beginning May 1, 2010, at a price ranging
from 102% to 100% of principal value. Debt service on the bonds is provided by incremental
property tax revenues generated within the Downtown Redevelopment Project Area. At June
30, 2018, $1,095,000 was outstanding.
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Note 11: Successor Agency Trust for Assets of Former Community Redevelopment Agency

(continued)
Pledged Revenue

The City pledged, as security for bonds issued, either directly or through the Financing
Authority, a portion of tax increment revenue (including Low and Moderate Income Housing
set-aside and pass through allocations) that it receives. The bonds Issued were to provide
financing for various capital projects, accomplish Low and Moderate Income Housing projects
and to defease previously issued bonds., Assembly Bill 1X 26 provided that upon dissolution of
the community redevelopment agency, property taxes allocated to community redevelopment
agencles no longer are deemed tax increment but rather property tax revenues and will be
allocated first to successor agencies to make payments on the indebtedness incurred by the
dissalved community redevelopment agency. Total principal and Interest remaining on the debt
is $1,372,970 with annual debt service requirements as indicated above. For the current fiscal
year, the total property tax revenue recognized by the City and Successor Agency for the
payment of indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Community Redevelopment Agency was
$194,258 and the debt service obligation on the bonds was $71,716.

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding bond indebtedness as of June 30, 2018,
including interest are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 130,000 % 65570 3% 195,570
2020 140,000 57,900 197,800
2021 145,000 49,500 194,500
2022 155,000 40,800 195,800
: 2023 165,000 31,500 196,500
2024 - 2025 360,000 32,700 392,700
Total $ 1095000 & 277970 $ 1,372,970

Insurance
The Successor Agency is covered under the City of South Pasadena’s insurance policies.
Therefore, the limitation and self-insured retentions applicable to the City also apply to the

Successor Agency. Additional information as to coverage and self-insured retentions can be
found in Note 9.
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Note 12: Deficit Fund Balances
The following funds have deficits In fund balance at June 30, 2018:

Fund Amount

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Speclal Revenue Funds:

MTA Pedestrian Improvement 5 (29,951)
CTC Traffic Improvement (131)
Mission Merdan Public Garage (321,560)
County Park Bond (140,710)
MSRC Grant Fund (134,182}
BTA Grants (134,274)
Golden Streets Grant (46,369)
CDBG (2,437)
Homeland Securily Grant (25,397)
HSIP Grant (39,173)

The City intends to fund these deficits with future revenue, transfers and reductions of
expenditures in future years.

Note 13: Supplementary Budget Information

The City did not adopt a budget for the following funds: MTA Pedestrian Improvement, CTC Traffic
Improvement Grant, Asset Forfeiture, CLEEP, Homeland Security Grant, MRSC Grant, and Golden
Streets Grant Fund. Accordingly, such budgsetary information Is not included as supplementary
Information.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations at the fund level were as follows:

Fund Appropriations _Expenditures Excess
Major Govemnmental Funds:
General Fund:
General government;
Elactions 3 58,600 § 63,733 § (5,133)
Personnel 269,400 408,161 (138,761)
Legal services 265,000 292,772 (27,772)
Finance 708,802 795,481 (86,679)
Cily treasurer 9,249 9,250 (4 )]
Non-departmental 916,378 1,056,457 {138,079)
Public safety:
Fire 4,617,689 4,814,959 (197,070)
Community services:
Library 1,636,477 1,658,357 (21,880)
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Parking and Buslness Improvement 138,000 164,550 (26,550)
Gas Tax 636,608 706,374 (69,766)
Counly Park Bond 43,500 48,0414 (4,541)
Community Development Block Grant 140,835 189,256 {48,421}
Stale Police Grant 75,000 83,878 (8,878)
Park Impac! Fees - 60,992 (60,992)
Housing Authority . 3,585 (3,585)
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Note 14: Prior Period Restatement

As discussed in Note 1, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) effective July 1,
2017, GASE 76, among other provisions, amended prior guidance with respect to reporting of
postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). GASB 75 establishes standards for
measuring and recognizing liabilites, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of
resources, and expense/expenditures. For other postemployment benefits (OPEB), the City's net
OPEB pension liability was not previously recorded on the statement of net position. GASB 75
requires that accounting changes adopted to conform to the provisions of the Statement be applied
retroactively by restating financial statements. Accordingly, beginning net position on the Financial
Statements has been restated for changes related to GASB 75 as follows:

Government-Wide Statements
Statament of Activitles - Governmental Activities

Net posltion, beginning of year, prior to restatement $ 50,972,326
Elimination of OPEB liabllity as calculated under GASB 45 8,203,230
Recording of initial Net OPEB liability as calculated under GASB 75 (15,483,501)
Recording of initial Net OPEB related deferred amounis as calculated under GASB 75 564,441

Restatement due to change in accounting principle (6,715,830)

Net position, beginning of year, as restated $ 44,256,496

Government-Wide Stataments
Statement of Activities - Business-Type Activities

Net position, beginning of year, prior to restatement " $ 29,478,437
Elimination of OPEB liabillty as calculated under GASB 45 1,268,770
Recording of initial Net OPEB liability as calculatad under GASE 75 (2,385,830)
Recording of inilial Net OPEB related deferred amounts as calculated under GASB 75 87,339

Restatement due to change in accounting principle (1,038,721)

Net positlon, beglinning of year, as restated $ 28.440,716

Fund Statemants
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Pasition

Water Fund
Net position, beginning of year, prior to restatement $ _25251,378
Eliminalion of OPEB liability as calculated under GASB 45 1,058,250
Recording of initial Net OPEB liability as calculated under GASB 75 (1,897,121)
Racording of initial Net OPEB related deferred amounts as calculated under GASB 75 72,804
Restatement due to change in accounting principle (866,067)
Net position, beginning of year, as reslated $ 24,3853M11

Fund Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Sewer Fund
Net position, beginning of year, prior to restalement $ 3,070,799
Elimination of OPEB liability as calculated under GASB 45 211,520
Recording of Initial Net OPEB liabllity as calculated under GASB 75 (398,709)
Recording of inltial Net OPEB relaled deferred amounts as calculated under GASB 75 14,535
Restatement due to change in accounting principle {172,654)
Net position, beginning of year, as restaled $ 2,898,145
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OF

e
“SOUTH PASADENA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ~

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues
Taxss
Licenses and permils
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeltures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General govemment:
City council
City clerk
Elaclions
City manager
Personnel
Transportation planning
Legal services
Finance
City traasurer
Informatlon gervices
Non-deparimental
Publlc safaty:
Police
Fire
Community development:
Community development
Community services:
Library
Senlor cenler
Recreaction
After-school day care
Publlc works:
Public works adminisiration
Environmental services
Park mainlenance
Facillties malnienance
Capltal outlay
Total axpenditures

Excess of ravenuas over
expenditures

Other Financing Sourcaos (Uses)
Transfers oul

Tolal other financing
sources (uses)

Net change In fund balance

Fund balance, beglnning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeled Amounts

Aclual

Variance with

-61-
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Qrlginal Final Amounts Flnal Budget
$ 20,992,099 § 20,992,099 S 21,251,027 S 258,928
1,008,440 1,008,440 935,633 (72,807)
670,000 670,000 1,512 (668,488)
2,581,050 2,561,050 3,401,310 820,260
632,671 632,671 579,006 (53,665)
367,000 367,000 388,061 21,061
483,382 483,382 - (483.382)
26,734,642 26,734,642 26,556,549 (178,083)
66,389 66,388 42,847 23,541
460,222 460,222 429,972 30,250
8,600 58,600 63,733 (5,133)
971,844 971,844 845,476 126,368
219,400 269,400 408,164 {128,761}
187,000 187,000 70,535 116,465
265,000 265,000 262,772 {27,772)
723,802 708,802 795,481 (86,679)
9,249 9,249 9,250 {1
425,645 425,645 422,884 2,761
927,882 918,378 1,056,457 (138,079)
8,629,312 8,620,012 8,408,418 211,594
4,682,338 4,617,889 4,814,959 (197,070)
1,107,892 1,099,492 1,033,508 65,986
1,636,477 1,636,477 1,658,357 {21,880)
349,487 349,487 309,118 40,369
251,336 246,836 192,458 54,378
856,063 856,063 827,801 28,262
519,453 499,453 419,153 80,300
315,123 304,166 207,645 96,521
573,345 512,230 493,446 18,784
730,951 729,674 707,375 22,299
1,851,771 1,808,000 1,780,942 27,058
25,768,581 25,620,307 25,290,746 329,561
966,061 1,114,335 1,265,803 151,468
(1,900,000} {1,900,000) - 1,900,000
(1,900,000} {1,900,000) - 1,900,000
(933,939) (785,665) 1,265,803 2,051,468

16,625,180 16,625,180 16.,625.180 -
5 15,691,241 3 15839515 $ 17.890.983 § 2!051 AE8
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CITY OF' SOUTH PASADENA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS - COST SHARING

LLAST TEN YEARS*
Employer's
Proportionate
Share of lhe
Collective Net Penslon Plan's
Employer's Pension Liability Flduclary Net
Employer's Proportionate as a percentage Position as a
Proportion of the Share of the of the percantage of
Measurement Colleclive Nat Collective Net Emplayer's Employer's the Total
Date Pension Liahfity’ Pension Llability Covored Paytoll _Covered Payroll  Pension Liability
673012014 0.35660% § 22,189,470 $ 10,021,859 221.41% 79.82%
613012015 0.35146% 24123,577 10,601,417 227.55% 78.40%
613012016 0.36618% 31,865,437 10,683,089 298.28% 74.06%
6/30/2017 0,236714% 36,410,081 11,218,719 324.55% 73.31%

! Proportion of the net pansion liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which Includes both the Miscellansous and
Safaty Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivers Risk Pool.

* Measurement date 6/30/2014 (flscal year 2014-15) was the first year of implementation, therefore, only four years are
presenled.
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CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS - COST SHARING

LAST TEN YEARS*

Conlributions in

Ralation lo the
Actuarially Actuarially Contribution Conlribullons as
Measurament Determined Determined Deflclency Employer's a Parcentage of
Fiscal Year Date Contribution Contribution {Excess) Covered Payroll _Cavared Payroll
6/30/2015 6/30/2014 $ 1,926,450 $ (1,926460) § - $ 10,601,417 18.17%
6/30/2016 673012015 2,445,893 (2,445,893) - 10,683,089 22.89%
6/30/2017 6/30/2016 3,258,700 (3,258,700) . 11,218,719 29.05%
6/30/2018 813012017 3,082,379 {3,082,379) - 11,180,390 27.54%

* Measurement perlod 2013-14 was the fIrst year of Implementation, therefore, only four years are presented.
Noles fo Schedule:

Changa in Benefit Terms: None

Change In Assumptions: In fiscal year 2018, the accounting discounl rate was roduced from 7.65% to 7.15%

-B3-

30-82



Draft

Subject to Chanag
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RAT!OS

LAST TEN YEARS*
Fiscal Year 2017-18
Measurement Period 2016-17
Total OPEB Liabillty
Service cost $ 664,681
Interest 519,308
Changes in assumptions (1,694,570}
Benefit payments (645,346)
Net change in total OPEB liability (1,155,927}
Total OPEB llabllity - beginning 17,879,331
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 186,723,404
Plan Fiduciary Net Posltion

Contributions — employer -
Net investment Income -
Benefit payments -
Administrative expense -
Net change In plan fiduciary net position -
Plan fiduciary net posifion - baginning -
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 16,723,404

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the fotal OPEB liability 0.0%
Covered-employee payroll $ 11,644,645
Net OPEB [fability as a percentage of covered payrol! 143.6%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions: Discount rate increased from 2.85% at June 30, 2016 to 3.58% at
June 30, 2017

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is
applicable. Future years’ information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes
available,

*Fiscal Year 2017-18 was the first year of implementation
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OF'SOUTH PASADENA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2018

General Budget Policies

Budgetary control is an essential element in governmental financial reporting. The City, a
general law city in the State of California, does not legally require a budget. However, the City
Councll annually reviews and adopts a budget for the General, Specia! Revenue, Capital
Projects and Enterprise Fund types. To facilitate a greater understanding of the City's
operations, budget information for the General, Special Revenue and Capiial Projects Funds is
included in the accompanying basic financial statements. This detailed budget document Is
published and is a matter of public record. Each year, the City Manager submits his proposed
budget to the City Council. The City Council holds public hearings and may modify the
appropriations by majority approval. The legal level of expenditures is controlled at the fund
level and operating appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. All budgeted amounts
are reported on the same basis as the fund types and adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Changes in
appropriations at the fund level during the year must be submitted by the City's departments for
City Council review and approval. The City Manager may, without Councii approval, amend
individual line items within any fund and between divisions and programs, in personnel costs,
maintenance and operations, capital outlay and capital projects portions of the budget without
increasing total appropriations for that fund. Department heads may, without Council approval,
amend individual line items within any fund in the maintenance and operation portions of the
budget without increasing total appropriations for that division. Budget revisions made during
fiscal year 2018 were not significant.
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